UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

AD301343

CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

TO:

unclassified

FROM:

confidential

LIMITATION CHANGES

TO:

Approved for public release, distribution unlimited

FROM:

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies and their contractors; Administrative/Operational Use; MAY 1958. Other requests shall be referred to Army Ordnance Department, Research and Development Division, Washington, DC 20310.

AUTHORITY

d/a ltr 28 jan 1981; d/a ltr 28 jan 1981

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

GENERAL DECLASSIFICATION Schedule

IN ACCORDANCE WITH DOD 5200.1-R & EXECUTIVE ONDER 11652

THIS DOCUMENT IS:

Subject to General Declassification Schedule of Executive Order 11062-Automatically Dewograded at 2 Years Intervals- DECLASSIFIER ON DECEMBER 31

Defonse Docomentation Center Defonse Supply Agency Comeron Station Atexandria Verginia MCR 6



BY

DISCLAIMER NOTICE

THIS DOCUMENT IS BEST QUALITY PRACTICABLE. THE COPY FURNISHED TO DTIC CONTAINED A SIGNIFICANT NUMBER OF PAGES WHICH DO NOT REPRODUCE LEGIBLY.



UNCLASSIFIED

AD 213

CLASSINGATION CHANGED TO: NICLASSIFIED FROM FOUR FIDENTIAL ASSINGTT: PATE 28 5.81



UNCLASSIFIED



Armed Services Technical Information Agency Arlington Hall Station Arlington 12 Virginia

FOR

MICRO-CARI)

CONTROL OF LY

NOTICE: WIEN GOVERNMENT OR OTHER DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS OR OTHER DATA ARE USED FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN IN CONNECTION WITH A DEFINITELY RELATED GOVERNMENT FOR OURSEMENT OPERATION, THE U.S. GOVERNMENT THEREBY INCURS NO RESPONSIBILARY, NOR ANY OBLIGATION WHATSOEVER; AND THE FACT THAT THE GOVERNMENT ANY HAVE FORMULATED, FURNISHED, OR IN ANY WAY SUPPLIED THE SAID DRAWINGS, & PECIFICATIONS, OR OTHER DATA IS NOT TO BE REGARDED BY IMPLICATION OF OTHERWISE AS IN ANY MANNER LICENSING THE HOLDER OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR CORCERNATION, OR CONVEYING ANY RIGHTS OR PERMISSION TO MANUFACTURE, USE OR SELV. ANY PATENTED INVENTION THAT MAY IN ANY WAY BE RELATED THERETO.





I.STIA

BATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE . <u>*</u>

SEP 2 1958

This document is the property of the United States Government. It is furnished for the duration of the contract and shall be returned when no longer required, or upon recall by ASTIA to the following address: Armed Services Technical Information Agency, Arlington Hall Station, Arlington 12, Virginia

NOTICE: THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION AFFECTING THE NATIONAL DEFENSE OF THE UNITED STATES WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE ESPIONAGE LAWS, TITLE 18, U.S.C., SECTIONS 793 and 794. THE TRANSMISSION OR THE REVELATION OF ITS CONTENTS IN ANY MANNER TO AN UNAUTHORIZED PERSON IS PRCHIBITED BY LAW.

FINAL REPORT

on

AN ANALYTICAL STUDY OF DATA ON ARMOR PENETRATION BY TANK-FIRED, KINETIC ENERGY PROJECTILES

Ord Project No. TB3-1224B D/A Project No. 5B0304004

to

ORDNANCE DEPARTMENT RESEARCH AND DEVFLOPMENT DIVISION DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

31 May 1958

by

J. C. Bell and L. E. Hulbert

Contract No. DA 33-019-ORD-1642

BATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE 505 King Avenue Columbus 1, Ohio

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
SUMMARY	1
BACKGROUND	2
ASSEMBLING THE DATA	5
Search for Data	5
Selection of Data to be Tabulated	5
Editing the Test Results	7
Classes of Data Found	10
EVALUATION OF BALLISTIC LIMITS	13
Probit Analysis for Substantial Tests	13
Choice of Formula for Fitting Penetration Data	13
Maximum Likelihood Solution for the Ballistic Limit	14
Precision of the Ballistic Limit	18
Probit Analysis Without Variation of Hardness	23
Brief Analysis Used for Cases With Few Data	24
Compilation of Ballistic Limits	25
OBSERVATIONS CONCERNING THIS STUDY	28
Success of the Methods of Analysis	28
Application of the Results	70
APPENDIX	

BIBLIOGRAPHY .	*	•	•	¥	٠	•	•	*	،	×	×			٠	×	ir i	A -	1
----------------	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	--	--	---	---	------	-----	---



- 7

AN ANALYTICAL STUDY OF DATA ON ARMOR PENETRATION BY TANK-FIRED, KINETIC ENERGY PROJECTILES

by

J. C. Beli and L. E. Hulbert

SUMMARY

This report describes a survey of Aberdeen Proving Ground data on penetration of homogeneous armor by kinetic energy projectiles. The projectiles were of the types that have been or might be fired from tanks, with calibers ranging from 37 mm to 155 mm. The data were collected for individual rounds and pertinent information for each round was punched on IBM cards, one card to a round. The data processing began only when all similar rounds fired at similar targets had been assembled. Insofar as possible, ballistic limits for each projectile-target situation were computed by carefully designed statistical procedures (programmed for the IBM Type 650 Magnetic Drum Data Processing Machine) with which measures of the precision of each limit could be stated. Through a careful and continuous study of the data, several observations were made concerning factors which affect the dependability of results from penetration tests. Finally, the results of the survey, based on over 20,000 rounds of over 50 kinds of projectiles, are compiled into a large table. This table should furnish a convenient reference for penetration data, and should serve as a step toward further correlation and condensation of the data.

2

BACKGROUND

The conventional means for defeating tank armor has long been projectiles which penetrate the armor by virtue of their kinetic energy at the instant of impact. Many studies, mostly empirical but some theoretical, have been made to find how fast a given projectile must be traveling in order to penetrate a given piece of armor. The theoretical work is difficult, so simplifications must be introduced, and these generally prevent the results from having broad applicability. On the other hand, experiments with regular projectiles are expensive, so many early experiments were conducted with relatively limited test conditions.

One way to get fairly broad empirical results economically is to restrict attention to small caliber projectiles. A widely quoted formula from the National Physical Laboratory* was based on experiments with projectiles from 0, 296 in. to 1,565 in. in diameter against plates 5 to 80 mm thick, having Brinell hardness 250 to 450 kg/mm². Later work permitted the formula to be amended to include the influence of obliquity of the line of fire with respect to the target. As the formula was proposed it predicted velocities required for intact projectiles to achieve penetrations complete in the Navy sense, that is, with at least half the weight of the projectile passing completely through the plate. In order to broaden the usefulness of the formula, means were developed in Project Thor** for adapting the formula to broken projectiles, and for predicting penetrations complete in the Army sense, that is, where light shows through the hole when the projectile is removed. Still this work referred to small projectiles, ranging in diameter from 0.30 in. to 37 mm, and most of the target plates had thicknesses of an inch or less. Data for the Project Thor correlation were drawn largely from a single Aberdeen Proving Ground Report***.

The NPL formula, as quoted in the Project Thor Report, is:

$$\frac{mV_{L}^{2}}{d^{3}} = \left(43.4\sqrt{B} - \sec\frac{32}{2} + 929 - \frac{11,900}{65 - 1} - \frac{54,000}{B_{0} - B}\right)^{2},$$

where

V_{1.} = ballistic limit in ft/sec

d = diameter of the projectile core in inches

Sophish, D. G., The Optimum Hardness of Homogeneous Armor for Residance to Perforation at Social Attack by Projectics of Different Sizes a Fourth Progress Report on Effect of Scale in Armor Penetration, A. P. P. Coordinating Subcommittee Paper Big N. P. L. Engineering Division, Britshig (September 1960), Confidentials of the Subconst Defense Research Committee matter a Effects of Impact and Explorition, Summary Technical Report of Division 24, No. D. A. Cog Kole 1 (246), p. C. a confidential.

Mohns Hopkins Shaversity, "A Suggented Technique for Predicting the Performance of Armor Piercing Projectules of Email in Noted Homogeneous Armor", Project Thir Technical Report No. 14 (September 1956), Confidential,

MANETE IN Proving comming. Effects of Hard I'm, (Misignets, and Plate. Thickness on the Bailinder Properties of Aciled Homoger rous Armor when subjected to Allack by Various Projectules (, AD-111) (196), "Add 1, Antricted.

3

B = Brinell Hardness Number in kg/mm^2 units

e = thickness of the armor in inches

 $B_0 = 500 - 160 \log_{10}\left(\frac{d}{d'}\right)$

 $d^1 = 1.565$ in., the diameter of the British 2-pounder shot

 $\hat{\theta}$ = angle of attack, measured in degrees off the normal.

The corrections to this formula devised for Project Thor are shown graphically in the same report.

Although the studies mentioned were limited to small caliber projectiles, there are many data referring to full-scale tests with the kinds of projectiles used by tanks, that is, from 37 to 120 mm, and some even larger. The Aberdeen Proving Ground has conducted many experimental programs with such projectiles for various (though often limited) motives. Thus, a moderate amount of firing was done in testing early designs of new projectiles. One substantial program (Project AX 23) tested various steels for a single projectile, the 90 mm AP, T33E7. A long series of related tests (Project 2864) was designed to show the effect of hardness of the plate in withstanding the shot, and since plate obliquity was known to be important, variations were introduced in that too. Fairly recently, a large, more fully organized program (Projects TB4-150M and TB4-10A) was performed for testing the effects of plate hardness, obliquity, and type (whether cast or rolled*), using more modern projectiles. In addition, many other experiments were performed for a variety of special reasons.

Since the voluminous results of these full-scale tests were quite scattered, the Ballistic Research Laboratories undertook to assemble the results into a more concise form. Two reports were published on this subject. The first** was simply a collection of ballistic limits as reported in the many firing records. The second report*** provided an empirical correlation of these limits. The number of ballistic limits considered in the correlation process was 2364, with 1475 for rolled and 889 for cast armor. The projectiles included 11 varieties of AP shot, 9 of APC, and 11 of HVAP. There were, of course, many obliquities and plate thicknesses, chosen to make suitable targets for the projectiles being tested. The results consisted first of a series of graphs showing how the meast red ballistic limits varied with the t/d ratio (armor thickness/core diameter) for given projectiles, obliquity, and armor type. Second, a set of predictive curves was fitted in the form:

^{ema}kikan, B. Any, An Empire al Analysis of the Perflyata in or A Hed and Cast Homogene in Armon by Conventana is Miabed - Rineth, Every's Protectiles of the New 37 star. They 255 poindOVy Ballint C Aeneaech Laboratorest Memorrandum Acplot No. Conce - Elevel 1.457 (Confidential)



The reports in this priject speak als of wrought armor. After some study of the matter it was decided to treat golled and wrought armost as being ementially the same in the pleasant survey.

[&]quot;Kilian, B., Roy, An Amembly of Data Concerning the Penetration - Likiling, Wrought and Cant Armor Place by Kupetic Energy - in jectiles: Exclusion 37 mm Through 255 mm(13), Ballintic Research Laborat risk Technical Note No. (1744May - Sec-- Confidential.

4

Ballistic Limit = $K_{f_i}(t/d)^n$,

where n = 0.85 for AP projectiles, 0.78 for APC, and 0.65 for HVAP; and K_o was tabulated for each combination of armor type (rolled or cast), projectile type (AP, APC, or HVAP) and obliquity. Generally speaking, the correlations were fairly good, but some substantial discrepancies between predicted and measured values remained.

Brief inspection of the ballistic limits tabulated in the BRL collection shows the difficulty of choosing a representative ballistic limit for any test condition, because the tabulated limits for many conditions scatter badly. This is not surprising since the bulk of the limits were found as average velocities of only one complete and one partial penetration, even though more extensive tests usually produce both complete and partial penetrations over a wide range of velocities. The question arises whether there might not be some advantage in combining the penetration data from all similar tests in order to compute an over-all ballistic limit. The resulting limit should be less equivocal, and it may be possible to get confidence limits for it. It should be remembered that this over-all limit can be based on results from many more rounds than contributed to the limits in the BRL collection, since the rounds discarded in getting individual limits can be retained in getting the over-all limit. In addition, results from other kinds of tests, such as shot or plate acceptance, may be considered for use, even though they were never part of a ballistic limit test.

It is the plan of collecting round by-round results, instead of individual ballistic limits, that forms the basis for the present work. It is recognized, of course, that confusion may result from mechanically combining data from many divergent sources, possibly having systematic discrepancies. However, any such confusion would seem to be a legitimate part of the results, provided all the data are equally relevant.

5

ASSEMBLING THE DATA

Search for Data

It was known that firing records showing individual rounds were available at several military libraries, but the most promising place to find records for tank-fired projectiles was the Technical Information Branch at the Aberdeen Proving Ground. A total of about 6 man-weeks were spent searching the firing records stored there, selecting those which seemed to contain relevant tests. After the pertinent records were found, the TIB prepared duplicates and sent them to Battelle Memorial Institute. This large work of reproduction (totalling about 14,000 sheets) proved to be of great assistance later in sorting and editing the data. The volume of records found at the TIB seemed to be about as many as could be handled in the present program, so little further searching was done except through the Armed Services Technical Information Agency at Dayton, Ohio, where a few more records were found.

During the search, certain limitations were placed on the kinds of records to be considered. First, they needed to refer to kinetic-energy projectiles, as opposed to HEAT or HEP or other explosive shots designed for the penetration of armor. This retained only the AP, APC, HVAP, and discarding sabot varieties of shot. The caliber of the weapon was required to be between 37 mm and 155 mm. The plate needed to be hornogeneous, so face hardened, spaced, and siliceous cored armors were omitted. Finally, no armor was accepted unless at least 1 inch thick.

Selection of Data to be Tabulated

The medium to be used for assembling the data ultimately was to be IBM punched cards which could store 80 numerical or alphabetic characters. It seemed most desirable that each test round should be represented by its individual punched card, and that all working information about the round should be on that card. Since firing records come in a great variety of formats, containing various spectra of information, considerable planning was required to decide what data should be recorded on the cards.

In order to know the origin of each shot card, some notation of reference was needed. Since the basic record is the Firing Record, its number was recorded together with the page and round number of the shot. (The AD or other project reports alrnost always show the raw data by appending several Firing Records.) In order to show associations of the test, a record was made of the AD report number (if any), or else of the library book number (if any). These reference data made it possible to check or amend the data by returning to the original firing records. They also helped reveal accidental duplication of records. (Many firing records occurred in two or more places in the library.) In addition, a coded notation was added to show the kind of test involved, whether acceptance or experimental, whether testing shot or plate.

6

The firing records may list many bits of information about the armor plate, such as nominal thickness, actual thickness, type (rolled, cast, wrought), physical properties including surface or cross-sectional hardness, impact tests, chemical composition, heat treatments, manufacturer, heat number, and so forth. Out of all these attributes it was decided that only the plate type, average Brinell hardness of the surface, and nominal thickness were indispensible. The actual thickness was to be recorded and used in the analysis if it were available, but the nominal thickness could be substituted for it. The Charpy or Izod impact test result also was to be recorded as an alternative or supplement to the hardness in case some need or means were found for so using it. Chemical composition and heat treatment were thought to be so complicated of description and so intertwined in their significance that it was unprofitable to include them directly. Along with other data, they could be had by returning to the original records via the reference punches, if this were ever needed.

Description of the shot in most firing records is implied in the model number. Therefore it was decided to describe the shot by assigning each model a three-digit code number. The codes were assigned fairly systematically, so that a person conversant with the system could recognize the shots fairly readily. In records about experimental shots, where many minor variations of shot might be made without changing the model number, double punching with "x" or "y" was added to distinguish between separate varieties. This system allowed these shot varieties to be distinguished or merged, depending on how the computing machines are wired^{*}. In addition, since a fair number of records list hardness measurements of the shot, the Rockwell C hardness at the nose was listed as a bit of stand-by information. No other data about the shot were available broadly throughout the firing records.

Certain test conditions, too, were indispensable for any analysis, namely the obliquity and the striking velocity. Striking velocities almost always are reported to the nearest foot per second, so they were taken in that form for the present analysis. It was intended to adjust those velocities by an appropriate factor (the square root of the ratio of nominal and actual plate thicknesses) in order to compensate for irregularities in the plate thickness. In this way, the tests could be divided efficiently into only a few plate-thickness groups. The obliquities, too, needed to be divided into a few groups, but this was accomplished merely by rounding the obliquity to the nearest multiple of 5 degrees. In most of the firing records, the obliquities were already rounded in this form. It might have been better to record more precise obliquities, when available, on the punched cards, planning to compensate for obliquity roundoff by performing a velocity adjustment, but this was not done, at least partly because of scarcity of precedent. One other test condition which is reported in connection with climatic tests is the temperature. This was eliminated in the present study by omitting the cold weather tests.

Another test specification commonly recorded is the weapon used in firing the shot. Since the rifling of the weapon has been a matter of occasional interest in plate penetration, presumably because of the effect of yaw, it was decided to keep a record of the weapon. To this end, each model of weapon was assigned a two-digit code, but preference was given to the tube model number in case that differed from the weapon model number.

For example, the AP 90 mm M77 was assigned Code 511. The Code 511 meant the same shot without a windshield. The computing machines recognize the latter code as 51f or 511, depending on the withing.

7

Editing the Test Results

The result of a given test is, of course, a vital part of the test record. For penetration tests, the result is usually described by saying whether the penetration is partial or complete, but several definitions of completeness have been used. This ambiguity is most unfortunate when a synthesis of data is being attempted, such as in the present project.

In order of severity, the criteria commonly used for completeness of penetration are (a) the Navy criterion which demands that at least half the weight of the projectile shall pass through the plate; (b) the protective criterion which requires that some fragment shall perforate a weak screen placed a short distance behind the target plate (the screen material and thickness seem to vary somewhat); (c) the Army criterion which requires only that light shall show through the hole in the plate when the shot is removed.

The firing records for penetration tests show evaluations of completeness by at least one of these criteria, but no one criterion is common to all the records. Firing records often rate a few rounds for completeness by two or more criteria directly or implicitly, but it is more common to use just one criterion chosen according to the purpose of the test. The firing records also usually describe several results on the plate, such as extent of bulge, cracking, spalling, and hole size, but the emphasis and thoroughness of description varied widely with the observer. From all these bits of information, it was necessary in the present work to construct a uniform penetration rating for each test round.

The Army criterion seemed to be most commonly used in the better firing records assembled for this study. Moreover, it appeared that the Army criterion could be applied most satisfactorily when ratings needed to be inferred from the other descriptive material. Therefore, it was decided to try to rate every round for completeness of penetration by the Army criterion. Ratings by the other criteria were to be recorded when they were shown explicitly or evidently intended to be implied by the author of the firing record.

On the basis of experience in reading the records, some rules were developed for deducing an Army penetration rating. Except when there was clearly some unusual spalling, $CP(P)^*$ was taken to imply CP(A). If the only rating shown was PP(N) or PP(P), then the question was referred to the descriptive matter. Any measurable hole on the rear implied CP(A). Also, when there was mention of a large bulge on the plate with punching started or with a substantial crack (longer than the plate thickness), this was taken to imply CP(A), unless it appeared that the author was unduly lavish in his descriptions. On the other hand, the rating was set at PP(A) if a cracked bulge was only medium or small, or if the crack was very short. This method of assigning Army ratings by noting bulges and cracks was checked often when Army ratings were given in the firing records, and the method appeared moderately dependable. Occasionally, when protective ratings were given alone without any ether descriptive matter, they were assumed to coincide with Army ratings, but fortunately this expedient was not needed often. Rarely, in view of persistent doubt about it, no rating was assigned.

8

One other relevant test result appeared to be the rupture of the projectile. For example, several test programs have distinguished between ballistic limits for shattered as opposed to unshattered projectiles, and the Project Thor analysis distinguished between broken and intact projectiles. Therefore, in the present project, a brief record of projectile rupture was included for each test. Five classes were recognized: intact, broken but not shattered, nose shattered, other shatter, and no comment. The firing record descriptions varied, so the classification was sometimes difficult, but plausible guesses could be made.

In order to prepare the data for keypunching onto cards, worksheets were prepared on which an editor could assemble whatever information he could gather from any firing record. The worksheets were arranged in the order that was to be used on the punched cards. Vertical columns were allowed for the following kinds of information:

Class of Information	Card Columns
Reference Data	
Library Number	
Book Number or AD Number	1 - 8
Page Number in Library Book	9-12
Kind of Test (Plate Experiment, etc.)	13
Firing Record	
Record Number	14-23
Page Number	24,25
Round Number	26,27
Active Identification	
Shot (code for caliber, type, model)	31-33
Test Obliquity	34,35
Plate Type	36
Nominal Plate Thickness (to 0, 01 in.)	37-40

9

,	
Class of Information	Card Columns
Active Data	
Actual Plate Thickness (to 0.01 in.)	41-44
Plate Hardness, Brinell	52-54
Striking Velocity	62-65
Penetration Rating (Navy, Protective, or Army)	+ or - in 68, 69, or 70
Occasional Reference Data	
Projectile Rupture Code	71
Weapon Code	72,73
Plate Impact, Charpy or Izod	74,75
Shot Hardness, Rockwell C, on Nose	76-78

The worksheets served not only as a place to store data but also as a reminder of the data that were being sought. This latter function was really important since the information was often scattered throughout a report, and at times had to be searched out of more than one report. Since several people did the work of editing, and they could not afford individual decisions on the problems which kept arising, the problems too were jotted onto the worksheets until they could be settled.

Considerable pains were taken to get all the really necessary information about as many valid test rounds as possible. Information regarded as necessary was that listed under Active Identification and Active Data. If entries under those headings could not be completed, the test was rejected, except for a few that were admitted without the Brinell rating. Another reason often used for rejecting a test was that it was really not a penetration test. This objection applied to most projectile-through-plate tests, and tests involving proof projectiles. Still other tests were rejected because they were isolated tests with poorly rated experimental projectiles.

When the firing records reported ballistic limits computed on the rounds reported therein, those limits too were jotted on the margin of the worksheets.

While the editing was performed by several people, _t was checked in the end by one person who attempted to insure uniformity as well as accuracy of the work. Then the worksheets were sent to keypunch operators who punched the data on cards and then verified the punching. In this way, reasonable accuracy sesms to have been achieved in the punched data, despite its scattered origins. Some mistakes were found subsequently in the punched data, but they have been relatively few,

10

The precise number of reports edited does not mean much, because the number of rounds per report varied from 2 for many acceptance tests up to about 640 for one armor report (AD 679). Nevertheless, it may give some idea of the editing task to state that the following approximate number of records were edited:

Kind of Record	Approximate Number
AD Reports	45
Project Reports	10
Firing Records of Substantial Experiments	
With Armor	80
With Projectiles	80
Shot Acceptance Tests	1850
Plate Acceptance Tests	750
Total	~ 2800

Classes of Data Found

The purpose of this project was to combine the data from the many reports that were edited, and to examine them for pattern and consistency. To gage this undertaking, it is helpful to know how many kinds of tests were found reported in the reference records. A résumé of the kinds of tests is given in Table 1. It can be seen there that about 50 principal models of shot were encountered, but that if one counts all the variations of these shot, there were over three times that many kinds of shot. (The precise number of distinct shot varieties is hard to know, because some minor variations were merged in the editing process, and other variations probably were not mentioned explicitly in the firing records.) When one counts how many tests were made with each of these shot varieties, separating the tests into groups according to armor type (rolled or cast), plate thickness (rounded to one of the standard values), and obliquity (rounded to a multiple of 5 degrees), he finds that over 1000 different kinds of tests were reported.*

The great diversity of tests can be reduced by observing that not all variaties of shot need to be analyzed separately. Thus, it appears reasonable to merge results from firings of the same shot with and without windshield, since it has been observed often that the windshield does not much affect the shot's ability for plate penetration at a given striking velocity. Again, shot designers have decided often that there was little

[&]quot;Unfortunately, a small part of the material gathered for this project remained smeduled to the end, The reason for this failure was unually that the tests described scattered tests with unusual kinds of shot, A brief listing of the smedited reports is included in the Appendix, along with the condensed list. I material that was edited



11

difference between one or more closely related shot varieties, and usually there are too few data altogether to dispute that viewpoint. Since large groups of data are to be preferred for the present analysis, several of these closely related shots were lumped together when they were employed in otherwise equivalent tests. Whenever a serious analysis of any particular test was planned, then considerable care was exercised to keep the lumped shots as compatible as possible. However, in some cases (notably the HVAP, 76 mm "specials") where no close analysis seemed feasible, even dissimilar shots were lumped together in order to provide a brief resume of the data. These processes of lumping shots account for the fact that the number of analyses shown in Table 1 is substantially less than the number of kinds of tests.

Broadly speaking, each of the various kinds of tests was subjected to one of three kinds of analysis, chosen according to the quantity and quality of the data. Each of these analyses was intended to estimate the striking velocity at which half of the rounds could be expected to penetrate completely. Groups with enough tests (perhaps 25 rounds or more), fairly well distributed with respect to plate hardness, were treated with a probit analysis, specially planned to account for variations with plate hardness. Good smaller groups, especially ones involving small ranges of plate hardness, were treated with an ordinary probit analysis. Groups with only a few tests (less than about 12), or with very irregular patterns, were treated with simple analyses of familiar form, such as taking average velocities of a few partial and complete penetrations. A breakdown of the kinds of analyses applied to the various cases is shown in Table 1. Details regarding method are given in the next section.

Table 1 also shows how many rounds of each main variety of shot were accepted for analysis. Numerous others were not accepted for analysis in the end, usually because they were from shot acceptance tests where the rounds were fired deliberately at velocities considerably above the ballistic limit.



					er of Testa				of Analyses	
	Projectile		Shot	Test	Rounds	Rounds		obite	Simple	
Class	Cal, mm	Model	Kinde	Kinde	Used	Omitted	w/BHN	w/o BHN	Analysis	Total No
AP	37	M74	1	26	2249	1024	5		13	26
1.F	31	MBO	i	1	0	73	5	•		Õ
	57/40	Taper(a)	î	10	67				11	11
	57	M70	2	43	2153	3928	14	14	12	40
	75	M72	2	32	1594	2761	5	3	22	30
		T43	2	4	16		•	-	2	2
		T148	,	32	134				12	12
		T149	ŝ	12	92				12	12
	76	M79	ĩ	22	283	937	4	4	14	22
		T128E6				• - •	-	-		
		(M339)	1	27	261			4	23	27
		T166	7	22	70				22	22
	90	M77	2	33	676	575	5	6	20	31
		T33	7	32	968	26		12	12	24
		T33E7	14	53	734	17		4	49	53
		T43	1	2	23				2	;
		T54E1	1	32	617		3	15	14	32
	105	T182	4	7	58		Ŧ	•-	2	2
	120	T116	4	46	412			3	43	46
	155	M112	ī	14	222	234	1	ĩ	10	12
	6 in.	Mk XXVII	ī	3	11	30	-	•	2	2
PC	37	M51	ī	40	1792	26	10	7	15	40
	57	M86	2	55	1503		16	9	26	51
	75	M61	ĩ	17	72	1489		í	14	15
	• •	T42	ī	2		,		-	2	2
	76	M62	ī	43	1012	235	11	10	21	42
	90	M82	-	59	1240	••••		7	36	51
	,,,	T25	ĭ	ĩ	7		•	•	1	1
		T26	i	ī	é				i	ĩ
		T27	ī	ī					ī	ī
		T26	ī	i	7				ī	ī
		T39	13	32	310		1	3	ŝ	•
		T50	2	16	101		-	ĩ	ĩ	ź
		TSOEL	ž	37	616		2	11	23	36
	105	T13	3		20		-		4	4
		TJZEI	1	4	73			2	ž	
	120	T14		35	270			4	20	24
IVAP	75	T27	ī	4	15			•	4	4
	76	M93	ĩ	•	119		1	2	4	i
		T4		20	200		-	ī	17	18
		Special	15	46	177			-		6
		T29	5	7	36				ī	7
		T66E3	ĩ	j	25	176				ż
		M331,D6	-	10	352				13	18
		M 304	ž	33	763	392	2	12	21	25
		M332	ī	5	51		-		3	3
		TH	ĩ	14	121	110	1	ĩ	12	14
		T44	í	1)	145		î	i	11	13
		T53	ī	ž			•	*	2	2
		165,DE	i	ì					Ĩ	1
		T117,08	14	38	235			I	24	21
	105	12984	1	ŝ	25			*	5	<u>.</u>
	155	TJS		7	26				;	Ţ
	• * *	# # * *		•	**				ه	•
l'atale		52	176	1028	25,000	32,309	-	194	685	
						~~			जाक र	

CONFIDENTIAL

ar anna sa

TABLE 1. SUMMARY OF CASES EDITED FOR EACH SHOT

* This projectile is for a weapon with a tapezed borte . See O. P. 5625

13

EVALUATION OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

Probit Analysis for Substantial Tests

Choice of Formula for Fitting Penetration Data

The ordinary method of evaluating a ballistic limit is to fire enough rounds to get a certain number of partial and complete penetrations within some predetermined velocity interval, and then to average the velocities of those rounds. This method depends on the notion that there is a fairly definite velocity below which the shot will not penetrate the plate completely, and above which it will. However, it is well known that there is really a zone of velocities in which mixed results can be expected. To put it differently, the probability of getting a complete penetration is indeed a function of the striking velocity, but it may be quite different from a step function jumping from 0 to 1.

The great majority of test situations have been the subject of so little firing that the probability of success (i.e., complete penetration) has hardly begun to be measured at any particular level of the striking velocity. However, among the test situations where many rounds have been fired, a common result is that the probability of success, as a function of velocity, rises slowly at first, then rapidly, and then slowly approaches unity, thus approximating a cumulative normal distribution. The slope of the central portion of the curve varies among test situations, and for some cases where shattering of the shot intervenes, the curve may drop again to some low value before it rises finally to unity. This matter of "shatter gaps" is one which will be treated separately later (and then only briefly), since the subject is difficult enough without it. For the present, attention will be restricted only to cases where the probability curve follows a cumulative normal distribution fairly well.

To rationalize this shape for the probability curve, one may assume that whenever a shot is fired there is some critical velocity above which the shot will penetrate completely, below which it will not, and that these critical velocities are normally distributed for repeated rounds under nominally identical firing conditions. This distribution of critical velocities may be attributed to minor, unseen variations in the physical makeup of the shot and the portion of plate which it strikes. Then it $\overline{v} = \sigma$ are the mean and standard deviation of these critical velocities, the probability of success with a shot at velocity v is:

$$P = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{-x^2/2} aA, \text{ where } t = (v - \overline{v})/c$$

This is the cumulative normal distribution. The quantity \overline{v} is also the velocity at which half of the rounds would achieve complete penetration, and is thus essentially just a reafinement of the ordinary concept of the ballistic limit.

CONFIDENTIAL

MEMORIAL INSTITUTE

14

It has often been observed, too, that the ballistic limit varies with the hardness of the plate, and the NPL formula quoted earlier gives an empirical law for that variation. However, that law was derived for small shot and thin plate, and it can hardly be extrapolated to all cases of interest here since the denominators of two of its terms (65- θ and B₀-B) can vanish in the present range of interest. Nevertheless, in order to get an idea of the influence of plate hardness on the ballistic limit, that limit was plotted as a function of hardness, using the NPL formula and several combinations of the other parameters. Most of the curves can hardly be distinguished from parabolas opening downward. This suggests that a parabolic relation between \overline{v} and the hardness h is a reasonable form to use in striving for an empirical correlation of the armor penetration data. This type of relation was tested further by comparing it with actual penetration data, and it appeared to serve us well as any other acceptably simple relation. Therefore, it is here assumed further that:

$$\overline{\mathbf{v}} = \mathbf{k} + \mathbf{a}\mathbf{h} + \mathbf{b}\mathbf{h}^2$$
,

where k, a, and b are constant.

Maximum Likelihood Solution for the Ballistic Limit

Suppose now that a group of tests have been performed at velocities v_1 with associated plate hardnesses h_i (i = 1, 2, ..., n), and that each has been rated as yielding a complete or partial penetration. It is required to estimate the parameters k, a, b, and σ which best account for this set of results. The method which will be applied is a form of probit analysis.^{*} First observe that if our assumptions regarding critical velocities and ballistic limits are valid, then the probability of success with the ith round is $p_i = p(t_i)$, where $t_i = (v_i + k - ah_i - bh_i^2)/\sigma$. The probability of achieving all the observed results is:

$$\mathbf{P} = \prod_{i=1}^{n} p_{i}^{-1} q_{i}^{1-1}, q_{i} = 1-p_{i},$$

where $b_i = 1$ for a success and 0 for a failure. The likelihood function L is defined as the logarithm of P, that is

$$L = \sum_{i=1}^{n} [\cdot_{i} \ln p_{i} + (1-\delta_{i}) \ln q_{i}] .$$

The plan for finding k, a, b, and " is to choose them so as to maximize I. from among all the values it can have when the velocities v_{14} hardnesses h_{14} , and rating numbers $\frac{1}{14}$ are the ones observed in the actual experiments.

[•] C.L., Extractly, D. B. Probit Analysia, especially Appendix 14. Cambridge University frees, London (1999), Conserve and C. Sterner, D. B. Ballon, and S. E. Gubbe, an Estimation Bouckted Lennard for Previous and F. E. Gubbe, an Estimation Bouckted Lennard for Note No., 151 (Klarch 1999).



15

The solution $(k^*, a^*, b^*, \sigma^*)$ is wanted which makes

$$\frac{\partial \mathbf{L}}{\partial \mathbf{k}} = \frac{\partial \mathbf{L}}{\partial \mathbf{a}} = \frac{\partial \mathbf{L}}{\partial \mathbf{b}} = \frac{\partial \mathbf{L}}{\partial \sigma} = \mathbf{0}$$

However, since these equations involve several transcendental functions of the unknowns, it is not possible to solve them directly. Therefore, it is expedient to begin with an estimated solution $(k_1, a_1, b_1, \sigma_1)$ and to seek corrections for it. Expanding the derivatives of L as power series around the estimated solution, there follows:

$$\frac{\partial L}{\partial k} = \left(\frac{\partial L}{\partial k}\right)_{l} + (k-k_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}L}{\partial k^{2}}\right)_{l} + (a-a_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}L}{\partial k\partial a}\right)_{l} + (b-b_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}L}{\partial k\partial b}\right)_{l} + (\sigma-\sigma_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}L}{\partial k\partial \sigma}\right)_{l},$$

and similar equations for the other derivatives. If the estimated solution is not too far from the required solution, then the series truncated at this length are valid there, so that:

$$(\mathbf{k}^{*}-\mathbf{k}_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}\mathbf{L}}{\partial\mathbf{k}^{2}}\right)_{1} + (\mathbf{a}^{*}-\mathbf{a}_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}\mathbf{L}}{\partial\mathbf{k}\partial\mathbf{a}}\right)_{1} + (\mathbf{b}^{*}-\mathbf{b}_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}\mathbf{L}}{\partial\mathbf{k}\partial\mathbf{b}}\right)_{1} + (\sigma^{*}-\sigma_{1})\left(\frac{\partial^{2}\mathbf{L}}{\partial\mathbf{k}\partial\sigma}\right)_{1} = -\left(\frac{\partial\mathbf{L}}{\partial\mathbf{k}}\right)_{1},$$

and there are three other similar equations. These equations are linear in the corrections k^*-k_1 , a^*-a_1 , b^*-b_1 , and $\sigma^*-\sigma_1$. Solving for these, and adding them to the first estimates yields improved estimates of the desired solution. The correction process can be repeated until the corrections become negligible, and the last estimates are then the desired solution (k^* , a^* , b^* , σ^*).

In order to find the corrections k^*-k_1 , and so forth, one needs the second derivatives of L. To get these, note first that if θ_1 and σ_2 are any two of the parameters k, a, b, or σ , then:

$$\frac{\partial^2 L}{\partial \theta_1 \partial \theta_2} = \sum_{i=1}^n \left[\frac{\partial^2 p_i}{\partial \theta_1 \partial \theta_2} \cdot \frac{\delta_1 - p_i}{p_i(1 - p_i)} - \frac{\partial p_i}{\partial \theta_1} \frac{\partial p_i}{\partial \theta_2} \cdot \frac{p_i + \delta_1(1 - 2p_i)}{p_i^2 (1 - p_i)^2} \right].$$

A convenient notation is:

$$Z_i = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\pi}} e^{-t_1^2/2}, t_i = (v_1 - k - ah_i - bh_i^2)/\sigma$$

Then,

$$\frac{\partial^2 p_i}{\partial \hat{c}_1 \partial \hat{c}_2} = Z_i \frac{\partial^2 t_i}{\partial \hat{c}_1 \partial \hat{c}_2} - t_i Z_i \frac{\partial t_i}{\partial \hat{c}_1} \frac{\partial t_i}{\partial \hat{c}_2},$$

and

$$\frac{\partial L}{\partial v_1 \partial v_2} = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left[\frac{v_1 - p_1}{p_1 (1 - p_1)} \left(Z_1 \frac{\partial^2 t_1}{\partial v_1 \partial v_2} - t_1 Z_1 \frac{\partial t_1}{\partial v_1 \partial v_2} \right) - Z_1^2 \frac{\partial t_1}{\partial v_1} \frac{\partial t_1}{\partial v_2} - \frac{p_1^2 + v_1 (1 - 2p_1)}{p^2 (1 - p_1)^2} \right], \quad (a)$$

Martha

16

 $u_{i} = \begin{cases} -Z_{i}/p_{i} \text{ for a success} \\ +Z_{i}/q_{i} \text{ for a failure} \end{cases}, \text{ and} \\ w_{i} = u_{i} t_{i} - u_{i}^{2}. \end{cases}$

Now let

Then, recalling that $\delta_i = 1$ for success, 0 for failure, it follows:

$$\frac{\partial^{2}L}{\partial\theta_{1}\partial\theta_{2}} = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left[-u_{i} \left(\frac{\partial^{2}t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{1}\partial\theta_{2}} - t_{i} \frac{\partial t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{1}} \frac{\partial t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{2}} \right) - u_{i}^{2} \frac{\partial t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{1}} \frac{\partial t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{2}} \right]$$
$$= \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left[-u_{i} \frac{\partial^{2}t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{1}\partial\theta_{2}} + w_{i} \frac{\partial t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{1}} \frac{\partial t_{i}}{\partial\theta_{2}} \right].$$

Thus the second derivatives of L with respect to the various parameters are:

$$L_{kk} = \sigma^{-2} \sum w_{i} ,$$

$$L_{ka} = \sigma^{-2} \sum w_{i} h_{i} ,$$

$$L_{kb} = \sigma^{-2} \sum w_{i} h_{i}^{2} ,$$

$$L_{k\sigma} = \sigma^{-2} \sum (w_{i} t_{i} - u_{i}) ,$$

$$L_{aa} = \sigma^{-2} \sum w_{i} h_{i}^{2} ,$$

$$L_{ab} = \sigma^{-2} \sum w_{i} h_{i}^{3} ,$$

$$L_{a\sigma} = \sigma^{-2} \sum (w_{i} t_{i} - u_{i}) h_{i} ,$$

$$L_{bb} = \sigma^{-2} \sum (w_{i} t_{i} - u_{i}) h_{i}^{2} ,$$

$$L_{b\sigma} = \sigma^{-2} \sum (w_{i} t_{i}^{2} - 2u_{i} t_{i}) .$$

Letting $\delta k = k^* - k_1$, $\delta a = a^* - a_1$, $\delta b = b^* - b_1$, and $\delta \sigma = \sigma^* - \sigma_1$. the system of equations that must be solved for the corrections is:

$$(L_{kk})_{1} \stackrel{5k}{\rightarrow} + (L_{ka})_{1} \stackrel{\delta a}{\rightarrow} + (L_{kb})_{1} \stackrel{5b}{\rightarrow} + (L_{kd})_{1} \stackrel{\delta \sigma}{\sigma} = - \left(\sigma \sum u_{i} \right)_{1}$$

$$(L_{ka})_{1} \stackrel{5\kappa}{\rightarrow} + (L_{aa})_{1} \stackrel{\delta a}{\rightarrow} + (L_{ab})_{1} \stackrel{\delta b}{\rightarrow} + (L_{ad})_{1} \stackrel{\delta \sigma}{\sigma} = - \left(\sigma \sum u_{i} \right)_{1}$$

$$(L_{kb})_{1} \stackrel{\delta k}{\rightarrow} + (L_{ab})_{1} \stackrel{\delta a}{\rightarrow} + (L_{bd})_{1} \stackrel{\delta b}{\rightarrow} + (L_{bd})_{1} \stackrel{\delta \sigma}{\sigma} = - \left(\sigma \sum u_{i} \right)_{1}$$

$$(L_{kd})_{1} \stackrel{\delta k}{\rightarrow} + (L_{bd})_{1} \stackrel{\delta b}{\rightarrow} + (L_{dd})_{1} \stackrel{\delta \sigma}{\sigma} = - \left(\sigma \sum u_{i} \right)_{1}$$

$$= \mathbf{CONFIDENTIAL}$$

17

Solving these equations by hand calculations would be possible but laborious, so a program was prepared to do the work with an IBM Type 650 Magnetic Drum Data Processing Machine. The plan of the program required first that an initial estimate should be made for each of the parameters. Then, as the card for each round was fed to the calculator, it would compute the contribution that round made to each of the sums appearing in the coefficients of the system of equations.^{*} The only difficulty in this process was in finding the quantities, Z_i/p_i . For these, a table was stored in the machine which enabled the machine to find Z_i/p_i correctly to one whole number and five decimal places. The whole operation proved to be efficient since the calculations performed for each card took about as long as the minimum time to feed a card to the machine. After the entire group of cards had been used, then an end program proceeded to solve for the corrections δk , etc.

In practice, solving for the parameters k, a, b, σ proved to be a delicate art. Unless the first estimated solution was quite good, the iteration procedure might never converge. Therefore, all the penetration tests analyzed by this technique were first graphed, using an automatic plotter, and initial estimates of the parameters were made from the graphs. Even with this good beginning, some cases failed to converge, presumably because either the normal distribution of critical velocities or the parabolic variation with hardness was not a good assumption. For nonconvergent cases, the only recourse was to divide the data into smaller groups, chosen as logically as possible, and to analyze the subgroups separately. Another rare cause for failure appeared when a parabola could be fitted to the data so as to separate entirely the complete and partial penetrations. This, of course, makes σ indeterminate; so for these cases a parabola was fitted using the fairly arbitrary value of 10 ft/sec for σ .

One further refinement that was added stems from the fact that the parameters k and a are relatively meaningless. For the sake of clarity of meaning in the parameters, it is more desirable to express \overline{v} as:

$$\overline{\mathbf{v}} = \mathbf{v}_{o} + \mathbf{b}(\mathbf{h} - \mathbf{h}_{o})^{2}$$
.

This is the same as the former expression provided:

$$h_0 = -\frac{a}{2b}, v_0 = k - \frac{a^2}{4b}$$

Since the values of k, a, b, and z which maximize L correspond by these relations to the values of v_0 , h_0 , b_1 , and z which maximize L, the latter values are easily found from the former. The reason for using the parameters k, a, b, z was merely that they visited simpler expressions for the second derivatives of L. However, when the parameters are expressed as v_0 , h_0 , b_1 and z_2 they become respectively the maximum for minimum ballistic limit, the optimum (or pessimum) hardness, a measure of sensitivity for changes in plate hardness, and the standard deviation of critical velocities.

Because of an algebrai off to terr some wing is explained, on the above expression for functions and long more of the solution of the solut

18

Precision of the Ballistic Limit

One of the great difficulties besetting the evaluation of ballistic limits has been uncertainty regarding the dependability of the limits as they have been computed in the past. Therefore, when probabilistic evaluations of the limits are being made, as they are here, some estimate of their precision is highly desirable. To get this estimate of precision, we can use a proposition from mathematical statistics, which states that the variances and covariances of the maximum likelihood estimators for the parameters of a population are the elements of the inverse to the Hessian matrix:

$$\left\| -\mathbf{E} \left(\frac{\partial^2 \mathbf{L}}{\partial \theta_i \partial \theta_j} \right) \right\|,$$

where $E(\cdot)$ denotes an expected value, and θ_i and θ_j represent any two of the parameters being estimated. Restrictions on this proposition are that the number of tests n is sufficiently large, and that to a good approximation^{*}:

$$-\mathbf{E}\left(\frac{\partial^{2}\mathbf{L}}{\partial\theta_{i}\partial\theta_{j}}\right) = \mathbf{E}\left[\left(\frac{\partial\mathbf{L}}{\partial\theta_{i}}\right)\left(\frac{\partial\mathbf{L}}{\partial\theta_{j}}\right)\right]$$

Regarding sample size, Golub and Grubbs gave an illustration with n = 5, so the present aim to keep n more than or almost 25 is probably fairly conservative. The approximate equality between expected values was deemed plausible by Golub and Grubbs, and seems to be so here too.

Regardless of which set of parameters is used, the equation (a) for $\frac{\partial L}{\partial \theta_1 \partial \theta_2}$ is still valid. In particular, we now regard it as applying to the case where θ_1 and θ_2 are any of the parameters v_0 , h_0 , b, or σ . Since only expected values of the second derivatives are required now, and since $E(\delta_i) = p_i$, it follows from equation (a) that

$$-\mathbf{E}\left(\frac{\mathbf{\mathfrak{I}}^{2}\mathbf{L}}{\mathbf{\mathfrak{I}}_{1}\mathbf{\mathfrak{I}}_{2}\mathbf{\mathfrak{I}}_{2}}\right) = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \frac{\mathbf{Z_{i}}^{2}}{\mathbf{p_{i}q_{i}}} \frac{\partial \mathbf{t_{i}}}{\partial \mathbf{\theta_{1}}} \frac{\partial \mathbf{t_{i}}}{\partial \mathbf{\theta_{2}}}$$

The required first derivatives are:

$$\frac{\partial t_i}{\partial v_o} = -\frac{1}{\sigma}, \frac{\partial t_i}{\partial h_o} = \frac{2b(h_i - h_o)}{\sigma}, \frac{\partial t_i}{\partial b} = \frac{-(h_i - h_o)^2}{\sigma}, \frac{\partial t_i}{\partial \sigma} = -\frac{t_i}{\sigma}.$$

Using these expressions for the derivatives, and the notation:

$$U_{1} = \frac{Z_{1}^{2}}{P_{1}q_{1}}$$

This statement of this proposition parallels that of Golub and Grubbs, op. cit., p. 9. For a more expanded, but less due it statement, see Kendall, M. G., The Advanced Theory of Statistics, Volume II, Sections 17, 36 and 17, 26, Griffin and co., Ltd., London (1)46).

19

it follows that the required Hessian matrix is:

$$\frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i \qquad -\frac{2b}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o) \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^2 \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i t_i -\frac{2b}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o) \qquad \frac{4b^2}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^2 \qquad -\frac{2b}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^3 \qquad -\frac{2b}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o) t_i \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^2 \qquad -\frac{2b}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^3 \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^4 \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^2 t_i \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i t_i \qquad -\frac{2b}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o) t_i \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i (h_i - h_o)^2 t_i \qquad \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum U_i t_i^2$$

The elements of the inverse to this matrix are the variances and covariances of the maximum likelihood estimators of the parameters v_0 , h_0 , b, and σ in that order.

The estimate of the ballistic limit $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$ is, of course,

$$\overline{\mathbf{v}} = \mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{o}} + \mathbf{b}(\mathbf{h} - \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{o}})^2$$
.

Since \overline{v} is a function of parameters that have been estimated to within known variances and covariances, it follows^{*} that the variance of this estimator for \overline{v} can be found from:

$$\sigma^{2}_{\overline{v}} = \left(\frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im v_{o}}\right)^{2} \sigma^{2}_{v_{o}} + \left(\frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im h_{o}}\right)^{2} \sigma^{2}_{h_{o}} + \left(\frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im h_{o}}\right)^{2} \sigma^{2}_{h_{o}}$$

$$+ 2 \frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im v_{o}} \frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im h_{o}} \sigma^{2}_{v_{o}}, h_{o} + 2 \frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im h_{o}} \frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im h_{o}} \sigma^{2}_{h_{o},b} + 2 \frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im h_{o}} \frac{\Im \overline{v}}{\Im v_{o}} \sigma^{2}_{b}, v_{o}$$

$$= \sigma^{2}_{v_{o}} + 4b^{2}(h-h_{o})^{2} \sigma^{2}_{h_{o}} + (h-h_{o})^{4} \sigma^{2}_{b}$$

$$- 4b(h-h_{o}) \sigma^{2}_{v_{o}}, h_{o} - 4b(h-h_{o})^{3} \sigma^{2}_{h_{o},b} + 2(h-h_{o})^{2} \sigma^{2}_{b}, v_{o}$$

This expression makes it possible to state a variance for the estimate of the ballistic limit \overline{v} as a function of hardness, at least over the range of plate hardnesses that appear in the case being analyzed.

As a conclusion to the computing for tests having variable plate hardness, a supplementary program was prepared to find the parameters v_0 , h_0 , b, σ and their variances and covariances. The results for all the cases analyzed in this way are shown in Table 2. Values of σ_{∇} for three levels of hardness covering the range of the test data are incorporated later in Table 3. If values of σ_{∇} are desired at other hardness levels,

• Cf., Hald, A., Statistical Theory With Engineering Applications, p. 118, John Wiley and Som, New York (195.).

					Tinit'			I	ness of Estimates of	at the line for	L.			ł
1	1 3	Į	*	1	1	•	~~*	~,4	• } ≈ * •	~,*		ية م	~,•	-]
		T	ž	I										
1	1	1		9		5	3	-	3	-	N 7		2	8
			Ĩ	Ŧ			5	3		ž	MIM	2716	710	2
1	1				2247	٠	×	3				P	포	
	•			ž	Ş	R	21	8		12 1	ų,		F	
				Ħ	Ŧ		Ħ	- 1				Ŧ	1 9	
	*	5		9 !	5	n ș						ļ	Ĩ	8
	3		¥1	ŧi		ł] ×	· ·	87	Į			18
				L M	E	व	義	*		ŗ	9	WAI -	K	R
				ł				ł	-	!	1	5	E	5
			Ē	Ħ		8	Ĩ	5			ļ	Ŧ	77	2
				Ħ		19		8	5	2	Ę	¥	2	58 1
				R	Ŧ		Ħ	R	E	5	Ŗ	Ŧ		C :
			E	E		M	Ħ	8	1/14	×		8		Ŧ
1	1		9	9	1	F			1	erse		See.	6	=
Ň		1 1	2		Ţ	. 1			Ĩ	ā	*	N 12		8
			: F		1981-	1	Į				ļ	1	1	21
	7 🕱		24	X	X	×			Ā			ţ	R	5
1		9	1	¥	Ħ	R	5	*	NHC21	T :	Ţ.	7 (8	F 1
1					چ ا	Ħ	6			E	-1414	Ŧ		8 53
			Ł	6	Ŧ	1				,	1	i	1	;
¢	•	2			Ş,	= 1	6		6				3 6	; ;
		ļ		Ľ		K	Į		}				1	1
1	A	5	5		Ę	5	ŝ		Ş			17141		ß
						I								
1	1						r	2	3	•	Ŧ	4	•	R 1
					19 1 -	•	H	9	1	21	ŧ:	ţ	ž :	
			1	1	₽1	# 1	* j	K j	25		- 1	: j	1 25	1
	•		21	R		3 #		!"	1	=	12-	3	8	1
				i il	F	1	2			Ē	Ĩ			\$ 1
					8	8	8		9	₹ \$	¥₿		R <u>H</u>	5
				X i	2 1	8 (E (i ļ		E S	5			8
	•		K)	r i	ţ		1	ER		13	1	11516	2	8
		3 8			1	•	2	5	Ā	\$	111	H	in a	81
	*			7	5	*			Ĩ				<u>ç</u> e	* 2
	: 34				Ţ	5	X	R	7	ŗ		ji !	i	11

ALE 2. BALLISTIC LIMITS OBTAINED BY PROBIT AMALYSES INCLUDING VARIATION OF PLATE MARDNESS

	1. 7	[A DESCRIPTION OF A DESC				
	C.	ð		Ļ	٦		•	7	~	-	2	7	7 7	•	-
			đ	N.	-8	Nunctional A	X	مع	مع	* * *	,,			°,	1
							X and A have								
	1			INCI	8	Į	*	ì	2		•	191-	Ş,	XI	5R
			87	1	R		*		ŕ	20	- INZY	1004	NUML2-	1	2
				2	Ĩ		2			BII		2141		8	R
		1	3		R.	<u>F</u>	R 1	6	1	Ĭ	¥ :		1912-	50	8
		R			F	ļ	R	Б		Ĩ	11	35		8	R 1
					Fi		1								R
		8		Ĩ	2	ŗ	2	ž.	T	Ĭ	3	R T	¥	8	16
						Ş		P.	6		9 '			C,	z
		1			R i	Ţ		R			7	1	5	121	9
							a i	× į	e į	Ð	ių į	8		5	K :
J		1				ļ	R.		5 1		3 1				2 1
		R			ii (ļ	PĮ	łį	• 9	2	ș I	Ì	2 1	8	R 1
		ſ			I ;	FI		į	R (P		ļ	R :	R :
			R		ġ	ļ	f			ł		M /7-		623	2
K 			3	ļ		Ţ	×	×	z		-		Ŧ	219	×
	ł	1					2				-1	21215			3
			9		£	Ţ	8				Zanaz				2
				5		Ę	3		3		*	-	Ą	9	2
		ł				4			1/11WE	22.001					1
				1	1	7	19		3	Ĵ		N 4-		Į	5
		*		Ĩ		Ŗ		3			9 2	-181		E	2
			1			Ą	X		2002		-			1716	9
				Ħ	Ē	ij	8		A		8	WONZ-	IR-	E	: 12
ľ	1	1	ļ	1	1	1	!	ł	ł				1		1
Ì	N R	8 1			6	Ļ					X	NISI -		9	£ :
,				15	1	5	, K					2028		Ę	- 1
				i		•	, E								8
•		۲				ļ	;		1	111			Ĩ		1 3
1				Ĩ	Ħ	¥	5	5	1	Ĩ	¥	H	NII	,	Ħ
	Ĩ		9					1			٩		3	8	1
	į	I ff		ļ	ł		8		•	•	3	•	i	B	R
y 1 B									j						
1															
K	š	*		Ĩ	5		Ħ	2011	Ĩ		Ħ	1941 -	1946	ð	R
		#			Ĩ	l	ł	9	ł			1		Ĩ	ÿ
	Ì	1	1		Ā	ļ	, 18	E	1	2	ŗŦ	1	14	15	1 3
		,	1				1								
		•	9		Ĩ	ŧ	8	ŧ.				Ŧ	Ā	×,	7
	2				1	Ę	ł				_				r
	-														:

TALE 2 Comment

ł

1

1

ŧ

i

#	 2		Ĭ				ļ		inches of Building Limit Percen	Line			
31	1.	2	-1	sil I	۰ł	~**	~~	7 7	. ,\$	م ² ، تالا	جر. الا الا	~•	-1
		• • •											
*	2		RI	ŧ	81	1	×		-1	<u> </u>		Ŧ1	E I
			1 X	¥Ŧ	8	i i		ł			i A		3 8
		1		ŧ	R	z	×	202	n	Ŧ	9	8	×
	21	11	ž I	Ę.	H 1	81	**	5	~ 1		H 3	H 9	2 P
	19	i A	ļ	ļŦ			NALED OF COLUMN				CL/001-		. #
			×	¥	ğ		×	•	7	Ŧ	Ŧ		5
æ	<u></u>	81	N 1	₽,	21	•	Ŧ		*	¥	Ę	8	žł
	ļ	ľ		ţ	Ł			1				5	
	<u>,</u> ,		58	•Ņ	* 5	N	r r		411- 1100		205- 205-	e 8	22 # E
¥	9	i	Ħ	Ņ		¥	×	Ĩ	1	¥	3		7
							-						
P				R		I		Ŧ				~	3
			ı Ą	ļ R				łŧ				<u>s</u> #	
			Ħ	Ŗ	z		8		7		2	¥	¥
	2!	K!		Ŧ!	Ŧ!	<u>۽</u> ا	<u>.</u>	Ī				F	K (
i		ł			ł		2			•	5		7
*	5 !	Ĩ	87	₹×	• 1				¥ ¥		문을		a B
3 2 7 E	9 <u>9</u>		# #	ŦŅ	¥	N S	N R		85	ţ	i i		5 2
2	2	Ē	R	£	#	5	~		-	ŧ	#	*	3
States and a second													İ

TAME & COMP

23

they can be derived from the variances and covariances shown in Table 2. Three other covariances $(\sigma_{v_0}^2, \sigma, \sigma_{h_0}^2, \sigma, \sigma_{b,\sigma}^2)$ were computed, of course, but did not seem necessary for inclusion in the table, since they would be used only for predicting standard errors of ballistic limits at levels other than 50 per cent probability.

In most cases, the values of h_0 shown in Table 2 confirm the idea that the optimum hardness of armor plate is in the vicinity of BHN 300, but there are many exceptions. A common reason for these exceptions is that as the plate hardness increases the projectile tends to shatter more readily, and this raises the ballistic limit. This increase of ballistic limits at the high hardness end of the data is not simply statistical chance, for the values of σ_b^2 show that b is generally significantly different from zero, whether b is negative or positive.

The values σ show that the scattering of critical velocities in most of the test situations was substantial. Better than half of them were above 60 ft/sec. Thus the chances for a seemingly erratic result with any small number of tests is reasonably great.

It may be observed too that there were five instances in which the parabola fitted the data with so little overlapping that the probit analysis did not lead to an evaluation of σ or of the variances of the estimates of the parameters. One of the cases (with the IIVAP 90 mm T44) was somewhat degenerate in that the data had only three hardnesses, but the other cases involved four to six hardnesses. For the latter cases, the parabola offered a surprisingly convenient fit.

Probit Analysis Without Variation of Hardness

There are many penetration tests that have been performed having so little variation of plate hardness that the preceding analysis is not justified. In this case, a probit analysis without variation of the hardness may still be applied, provided a reasonable number of tests were performed and the results include overlapping velocities of partial and complete penetrations.

An analysis for this case can be had from the broader analysis described earlier, provided it is assumed that a = b = 0, so that $\overline{v} = k$. This means that the maximum likelihood solution now requires finding only two parameters, \overline{v} and $\overline{\sigma}$. If initial estimates \overline{v}_1 and σ_1 are available, then the equations for the corrections $\sqrt[3]{v}$ and $\sqrt[3]{\sigma}$ are:

$$\begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{L}_{\overline{\mathbf{v}},\overline{\mathbf{v}}} \end{pmatrix}_{1} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{v}} + \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{L}_{\overline{\mathbf{v}},\overline{\mathbf{v}}} \end{pmatrix}_{1} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{v}} = - \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{N}_{u_{1}} \end{pmatrix}_{1} \\ \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{L}_{\overline{\mathbf{v}},\sigma} \end{pmatrix}_{1} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{v}} + \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{L}_{\sigma,\sigma} \end{pmatrix}_{1} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{v}} = - \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{v}_{1} \cdot \mathbf{v}_{1} \mathbf{t}_{1} \end{pmatrix}_{1}$$

where



24

$$L_{\overline{v}} = \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum w_i ,$$

$$L_{\overline{v}} = \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum (w_i t_i - u_i) ,$$

$$L_{\sigma\sigma} = \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum (w_i t_i^2 - 2u_i t_i)$$

while w_i and u_i are the same functions of t_i as before, but with $t_i = (v_i - \overline{v})/\sigma$. The variances and covariances in the solutions for \overline{v} and σ after the iteration process is completed are the elements of the inverse of the matrix

 $\left\| \begin{array}{ccc} \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum \mathbf{U}_i & \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum \mathbf{U}_i \mathbf{t}_i \\ \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum \mathbf{U}_i \mathbf{t}_i & \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \sum \mathbf{U}_i \mathbf{t}_i^2 \end{array} \right\|$

where U_i is as before except for the change in t_i . All these results are equivalent to formulas given by Golub and Grubbs, except for the small differences already noted in $L_{v\sigma}$ and $L_{\sigma\sigma}$.

Very little additional programming was needed to adapt these formulas to machine calculation, because the only requirement was to drop some of the terms that appeared formerly.

This method of analysis was applied to many cases where the accumulated data included as many as 12 rounds, but with little variation in the Brinell hardness number, that is, less than about 50. However, in order to avoid getting unreasonable variances, it was necessary to exclude several cases that were complicated by shatter gaps, or systematic discrepancies from other sources, some unknown.

Results of the calculations ignoring variation of hardness are not tabulated here as a group, because the most significant results, \overline{v} and $\sigma_{\overline{v}}$, are included later in the comprehensive Table 3.

Brief Analysis Used for Cases With Few Data

The methods of probit analysis require a sample reasonably good in both size and ion in order to produce useful results. If the sample is too small the logic behuu me probit analysis is weak. If there is no overlapping of partial and complete penetrations, then the solution becomes indeterminate. There were many cases of these into the data assembled for this project, plus other cases having very irregular data patterns. For these cases some analysis, or at least some method of description. Was meded. In order not to overtax the data, simple instead of sophisticated analyses is en in desirable.

25

For cases where there were less than about 12 rounds, or where there was no overlap, it was decided to use the old averaging technique to define a "ballistic limit". This was based, preferably, on six rounds: the three lowest CP's and the three highest PP's. If these lay within an interval of 150 ft/sec, and were the only test velocities in that interval, then their average velocity constituted a good ballistic limit by the ordinary standards, and it was accepted as the ballistic limit for the present study. If this six-round average could not be had, then an average of four rounds within an interval of 100 ft/sec was accepted, or even two rounds within an interval of 50 ft/sec. Accepting these as ballistic limits in the present study does not mean that they have any good or even known degree of accuracy. It means only that these were about as good limits as could be obtained, considering the state of the data. So long as the origin of each limit is stated, the varying definitions of the limits should not cause trouble. Of course, an extra bit of useful information about these simple ballistic limits is the spread of test velocities included, so it was decided that that too should be mentioned for each case.

A moderate number of test conditions have yielded test results that do not follow the ideal scattering of partial and complete penetrations. Sometimes there is an identifiable cause for this, such as shattering. In such a case, a split analysis is sometimes useful, say one for intact or broken shot, and another for shattered shot. It was decided to use a split analysis if that enabled one to give an instructive description of the test results.

In some cases, the partial and complete penetrations were mixed over a wide range of velocities, sometimes over practically the whole of a wide range that was tested. In order to describe this situation, it was decided that a simple statement would be made describing the mixed zone. Such a statement does not pretend to define a ballistic limit, but it does picture the state of the test results.

For cases where the highest PP was considerably below the lowest CP, it was decided merely to state those two velocities. Finally, if there were no CP's, then a highest partial penetration (HPP) could be listed; or if there were no PP's, then the lowest complete penetration (LCP) could be used.

It may be repeated that simple analyses of these sorts do not always give good evaluations of ballistic limits. Oftentimes they may be poor indeed. Good examples of this can be found in long sequences of PP's at successively higher velocities, followed at last by a lone CP. Such a sequence of tests may allow the computation of a simple two-round ballistic limit, but it has little meaning beyond that of identifying a velocity which lies in or near the mixed zone.

Compilation of Ballistic Limits

A comprehensive collection of the results of the analyses performed for the present project is given in Table 3, at the end of the text of this report. Since the table presents a wide variety of results, the user should try to keep in mind what the foundations of the table are.



26

First it may be said that the objective that was followed in preparing this table was to describe the results of the penetration tests as instructively and concisely as possible. The results were to be in the form of ballistic limits, but even the definition of ballistic limit needed to vary from case to case, depending on the quantity and quality of the data. Methods were needed both for selecting the type of limit and for describing the results of the analysis.

The approximate order of preference for the methods of finding the ballistic limit was:

- (1) Probit analysis with variation of hardness
- (2) Probit analysis without variation of hardness
- (3) Averaging if 6, 4, or 2 rounds, half being CP and half PP within a suitably small interval
- (4) Locating the zone of mixed CP's and PP's in the data
- (5) Locating the highest partial penetration (HPP) or lowest complete penetration (LCP) if the results were all of one kind.

For each test condition, the analysis was begun by trying the highest seemingly feasible method on this list. If that method failed (say, by lack of convergence of the probit calculation, or by unacceptable scattering of PP's and CP's for simple averaging), then a lower method was applied. At times it was expedient to split a large group of data into smaller subgroups in order to make them manageable. The splitting was done as plausibly as possible, on the basis of shattering, plate hardness, shot hardness, or even distinction between references. Separation according to references (applied twice, both times to data for the APC 37 mm M51) implies that there were real, but unidentified systematic differences between separate series of tests.

Except when parabolas were fitted with negligible overlapping of partial and complete penetrations, all the probit analyses were completed to the point of finding the standard error in the estimate of the ballistic limit. The probit analyses may be identified in Table 4 by the fact that the standard error (SE) is stated. If three ballistic limits, together with their standard errors, are shown by braces as having been derived from the same set of rounds (that is, only one entry for the "number of rounds"), then the analysis was one allowing for parabolic variation of hardness. The levels of plate hardness cited for these parabolic cases are roughly the extreme and middle hardnesses appearing in the reference data.

Limits obtained by averaging are identified by statements such as 6R(124), which would imply that the average was based on six rounds spread over a velocity interval of 124 ft/sec. The remaining types of analyses are identified by self-explanatory statements such as "Mix 3041 to 3463", or "2669 HPP".

The probit analyses were perferned by the electronic calculator which, among other things, adjusted the velocity of each round to an equivalent velocity against a plate of standard or "nominal" thickness according to the formula:
27

adjusted velocity = observed velocity $\left(\frac{\text{nominal thickness}}{\text{actual thickness}}\right)^{1/2}$

This formula is probably fairly accurate for the small corrections that were needed. Since these corrections were performed round by round, no further corrections for irregularities of plate thickness are needed in the results of the probit analyses. However, the simpler limits obtained by averaging or location of extreme velocities were evaluated by hand, and the round-by-round thickness correction for them became too burdensome. Therefore, for these simpler analyses, a note is added showing the average plate thickness of the rounds involved in the calculation, if that average was known to differ from the nominal plate thickness. These notes are written briefly in the form like "t 3.03", which would in ply that the average plate thickness was 3.03 in.

Since projectile breakup often influence: the probability of complete penetration, an effort was made to describe briefly the typical breakup in each case. This is contained in the notes by statements such as:

SI ~ shot generally intact,

SB ~ shot rally broken but not shattered,

SS ~ shot generally shattered,

or by combinations such as:

SI&B ~ some shot intact, some broken

SI&S ~ breakage ranging from intact to shattered.

Many of the rounds edited and keypunched were omitted finally from the analysis, almost always because they were fired in acceptance tests at velocities intended to be significantly above the ballistic limit. However, the existence of the rounds is noted in Table 3 by entries under the cases where they would have appeared had they been used Thus, for the AP 37mm M74 against rolled armor, there appear two entries, "84ARO" and "842ARO", which mean 84 and 842 acceptance rounds omitted. Such entries are sprinkled throughout the table.

When special modifications or lots of shot were used, notes are added in Table 3 identifying these shots, provided such identification was thought to be useful. A special abbreviation was used when the shot hardness was variable. An example of this is "RC61", which means that the hardness was 61 on the Rockwell C scale. The hardness listed is that of the nose, or of the bourselet if the shot were truncated.

References to the firing records in each test situation were not included in Table 3, since such an inclusion threatened to obscure the results. However, a list of reference reports used for this cellec ion of penetration tests is included in the Appendix



28

OBSERVATIONS CONCERNING THIS STUDY

Success of the Methods of Analysis

When this prc ct was begun, it could not be anticipated what all might result from putting data from so many sources into one great lump. In order to forestall trouble, as much information as possible was carried regarding each individual test. In consequence, the results are at least moderately consistent and precise. Because these results come from so many test programs, they are also as unbiased as seems possible at present.

In the process of performing the analyses, very many sets of data were studied by persons who wanted to understand those data as much as possible. When the scattering of the data was bad, reasons for this were sought. Only rarely were there cases where different firing records gave noticeably different results without a plausible reason. In only two cases was it thought profitable to split the data according only to the reference, both times involving AD 1084, which seemed to refer to either some very good plate or some very poor shot. The fact that separation according to reference was invoked so seldom seems to imply, on the whole, that combining raw data from many sources was a reasonably successful venture.

Use of the parabolic form for the influence of plate hardness was also reasonably successful. There were relatively few cases where the assumption of this form seemed to deny convergence to the process of probit analysis. When the parabolic form proved too inflexible, it was most often because a sharp increase in projectile shattering occurred as the plate hardness increased. Another occasional difficulty arose when the plate hardnesses went above BHN 350, for then the ballistic limit curve sometimes seemed to descend more rapidly than the parabola.

The assumption of the cumulative normal distribution for probability of complete penetration as a function of striking velocity was moderately successful, but it was often troubled by the occurrence of projectile shattering. A bac example occurred in the data for the APC 57 mm M86 fired against 3-inch R H. plate at obliquity of 35 degrees. In this case 105 rounds were recorded for Brinell hardnesses 295 to 335, having velocities between 2450 and 2800 ft/sec. At no velocity did the probability of a CP seem to rise above 40 per cent, and it seemed to fall to zero at both ends. The shot breakage in this case ranged from intact to shattered, but no record of the breakage was available for many of the rounds that were fired.

As a foundation for statistical analysis of the penetration tests, the assumption of the cumulative normal distribution seems as good as any reasonably simple assumption that can be made, but a highly detailed analysis of multitudinous data (more than exist now) would probably use a more flexible form for this probability function

The standard errors in the ballistic limits vary widely, but are typically from 15 to 50 ft/sec. A few are much larger, and yet more would have been larger if the analyses had not been split in the various ways already mentioned. This precision may prove disappointing to some people, but it appears to be what present data imply. The

CONFIDENTIAL

INSTITUTE

BATTELLE MENORIAL

29 and 30

implications regarding the ballistic limits obtained by averaging are that those limits toc are subject to substantial errors. This is particularly true for the many limits that were based on only a few rounds, and for those not selected by an over-under method.

Application of the Results

The early hope of the present project was that it would reach a simple, comprehensive correlation of the great mass of penetration data. This hope has not yet been realized because the great weight of the data has made progress slow. However, the objective is still there, and substantial progress seems to have been made toward achieving it. It is now possible to scan in 32 pages (Table 3), information which was contained at the start in about 15,000 pages of firing records, and the information has been processed according to fairly reasonable statistical procedures.

If and when further work of correlation is done, it should now be able to rest on firmer foundations, in that now a large collection of ballistic limits is available having associated measures of precision. Moreover, since the influence of projectile shattering seems so important, it should help to have at least the sketchy survey of breakage that is included in the table.

In view of many of the entries that can be found in Table 3, it is surprising that the earlier correlation work of Kilian, based on much the same data, was as successful as it was. Attention is called particularly to the many models of experimental shot that were used. Here many instances can be found where special variations of nose design or metallurgical design seemed to exert real influence on the ballistic limit, even though these results are rarely precise in the statistical sense. It should be noticed also that the last-resort analysis of citing simply the mixed some was used most often for tests of experimental shot designs. Any over-all correlation of penetration data covering many designs of shot probably needs to be quite perceptive in its recognition of which kinds of shot may properly be grouped together.

In their present form, the results of the present survey of armor penetration data should be useful in that they provide a ready reference to a large body of information. Nevertheless, it is to be hoped that the further work of correlation and condensation will be continued.

۰.

31

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.		late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	oſ	(Abbreviations
mm	No.	deg	in	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
37	M74	0	1.00	324-385	899	SE = 22	66	SI
			1,12	265-363	1087	SE = 13	39	SI
			1.25	269-337	1209	SE = 7	60	SI
			·	230	1256	SE = 14		
			1.50	\$ 300	1381	SE = 6	545	si
				370	1314	SE = 9		
			2.00	235-286	1685	SE = 13	94	SI, S4ARO
			2.25	235-293	1832	SE = 53	42	SI
			2,36	255	1880	2R(31)	3	60-mm armor, t 2.31
				(230	2060	SE = 165		
			2,50	270	2091	SE = 81 >	27	SL& S
				310	2346	SE = 102		
				347	2591	HPP	5	SB& S, t 2.51
			3.00	255-347	2815	6R(179)	14	SI&S, t 3.03
		20	1.50	266	1789	LCP	7	SS, 842ARO
		25	2.00	258	1842	2R(29)	5	SI
		30	1.50	2 5 5	1617	6R (179)	7	SI& S
		40	1.50	255	1808	2R (28)	6	
		45	1.50	255	2212	2R(36)	6	SI& S
			2.50	251	2346	2R(51)	4	t 2, 51
		50	2.50	26 9	2428	2R (44)	2	t 2. 51
		55	2.50	251	2620	2R (48)	3	t 2. 51
		60	1.00	341-375	2430	SE = 7	40	SB& S
			1.25	302	2720	SE = 6	25	SS
			2.50	26 9	2662	HPP	2	t 2. 51
37	M80	20	1.00				Ũ	73ARO
57/40		0	3.00	241	1898	2R(80)	4	SS
Tapered	Bote		4.00	229	2308	2R(21)	ε	SB& S
(Cf. OP5	829/1)		10.00	205	4047	HPP	2	
		10	6.00	224	2669	HPP	1	SS
		30	3.00	241	2332	2R(18)	5	SB&S
			4.00	229	2738	6R(94)	8	SB&S
			6.00	224	Mix 304.	1 to 3463	12	\$ 5
		45	3.00	241	31.)4	2R(36)	5	SB&S
			4.00	229	3313	6R (88)	11	SB&S, w/o PP at 3528
			6.00	224	Mix 2920	0 to 4022	10	SS
		55	3,00	241	4049	HPP	3	\$\$

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

32

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	ate	Ballis	ic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	CANCE	Rounds	explained on p 27)
57	M70	0	1.50	271-330	999	SE = 14	46	SI
			2.00	235-286	1248	SE = 9	35	SI
			2.25	235-293	1403	SE = 11	37	SI
				220	1454	SE = 36]		
			2.50	280	1549	SE = 12 >	68	SI, 7ARO
				340	1470	SE = 30		
				1220	1664	SE = 27		
			3.00	2310	1817	SE = 12	210	SI
				400	1.524	SE = 29		
				7200	1964	SE = 485		
			4.00	280	2384	SE = 18	41	SI
				350	2154	SE = 27 ∫		
				388	2860	6R(124)	11	SS, t 4.02
			5.00	217-259	2867	6R(113)	10	SI, t 5.09, PP at 2418
		20	3.00	226	2204	2R(52)	2	SB, 3921ARO
			4.00	262	2992	HPP	6	SS, t4.02
				357-388	2911	2R(24)	15	SS, t 4.01, lone PP
		25	4.00	388	2911	HPP	6	SS, t4.02
				280	2813	SE = 24		
		30	3.00	∢34 0	2580	SE = 17 >	160	SS
				400	2429	SE = 23		
			4.00	388	2325	HPP	6	38
				(230	3015	SE = 71		
		35	3.00	₹ 340	26 90	SE = 51 >	99	SS
				400	2514	SE = 35		
		40	2.00	291-300	1967	SE = 41	21	5 8
				220	2116	SE = 177		
			2,50	290	2624	SE = 128	87	SI&S
				36 0	2413	SE = 106		
				320	2387	SE = 41 5		
			3,00	360	267)	SE = 19	78	š 5
				400	2618	SE = 23		
		45	3.00	262	1734	2R(31)	5	t 3, 12
		50	1,50	330	2094	SE = 27	13	SI&S
				28)	2358	4R (40)	10	5 8
			2.00	320	2420	SE = 22	25	Š 5
				360	2312	SE = 23	46	S S
				220	2671	SE = .+0]		
			2.50	220	2780	SE = 43	63	SS
				360	2703	SE = 27		

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

33

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballist	ic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
min	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
57	M70	55	2.00	290-291	2494	SE = 38	14	SB
			2.50	327-353	2941	SE = 60	20	SS
		6 0	1.25	273-352	2375	SE = 67	35	SL&B
			1.50	331	2412	6R(92)	10	t 1.49, SB&S
			2.00	289 - 3 02	2785	SE = 17	21	SB
			2,50	327	2939	HPP	6	SS
		70	1.25	273-341	2907	SE = 41	35	SI&B
75	M72	0	1.50	255	737	2R(28)	7	SI
			2.00	235-286	924	SE = 13	54	SI
			2,25	223-293	1048	SE = 7	37	SI
				(230	1120	SE = 26		
			2.50	< 290	1149	SE = 14 >	55	SI
				350	962	SE = 38)		
			2.75	252	1241	2R(24)	3	t 2.73, 6ARO
				(220	1311	SE = 15		
			3.00	₹ 310	1367	SE = 14	79	SI
				400	1263	SE = 30		
			3,50	262-289	1536	4R(84)	6	t 3.49
				200	1570	SE = 33]		
			4.00	< 260	1711	SE = 10 🖌	41	SI&S, 11ARO
				(320	1655	SE = 25		
			5.00	217-217	1995	6R(147)	7	51
		20	3.00	246-262	1634	LCP	11	SI&B, 2744ARO
			4.00	300	25 82	2R(43)	3	SB, t 3,96
		25	2.00	255-258	972	2R (35)	10	SI
		30	1.50	255	790	2R(52)	6	SBA: S
			3.00	298	2086	2R(41)	6	SB&S
			4.00	••	2595	4R(42)	7	SS
		35	1,50	255	1088	LCP	3	51
		40	1.50	255	1013	2R(36)	2	
		45	1.50	255	1210	28 (35)	4	SI
			2, 25	258	2092	LCP	3	
			2, 50	269	2118	HPP	2	\$5 , t 2, 51
			3,00	300	2385	2R (52)	4	SS, t 3. 01
		50	2,00	262	2001	28(2)	2	\$ 1
		55	2,00	962	1998	HPP	1	
		60	1,50	265-265	1867	4R(121)	11	SØ
			2,00	262-300	2395	SE = 44	17	\$ 5

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor



34

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

1	Shot	Nom.	PL	Ate	Ballist	ic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
•	- 40	•	5 00	005	0147	47/561	(SB& S, t 5,02
75	T43	20	5.00	225	2147	4R(56)	(
		55	3.38	253	2920	4R(85)	7	\$\$
75	T14 8	0	2.00	277-285	Mix 842	to 1191	19	1148, 4 lots, SB
(11 ex	p. lots ^(a))			285	Mix 104	7 to 1648	12	M72 mod, 3 lots, SB
•	•	30	3.00	262- 298	Mix 185	9 to 2215	12	T148, 3 lou, SI&B
		45	2.00	233	1406	2R(21)	6	T148, 1 lot, SI
				293	1518	2R(84)	4	M72 mod, 1 lot, SI&
			2.50	269	Mix 162	0 to 1800	6	T148, 1 lot, SI&B
		55	2.50	269	2136	2R(3)	2	T148, 2 lots, SI&B
			3.00	262	2198	HPP	2	T148, 1 lot, SI
		60	1.50	265- 285	Mix 119	4 to 1414	15	T148, 3 lots, SI
			2.00	277-400	Mix 1 43	7 to 1965	42	T148, 8 lots, SI&B
				262-293	1700HPF	2105LCP	7	M72 mod, 2 lots, SI&
			2.50	26 9	221 0	2R (28)	7	T148, 3 lots, SI&B
75	T149(b)	20	4.00	300-308	2641	6R (132)	16	RC61, t 3.97, SB&S
				300	2619	6R(102)	10	R _C 55, t 3, 96, SB&S
				308	25 90	4R(144)	6	RC01, w/tip
		45	3.00	300	2403	2R (34)	3	R _C 61, t 3.01, SB
				300	238 9	6R(58)	9	R _C 55, t 3.01, SS
		53	3.00	302	2632	4R(98)	9	RC61
				302	2306	LCP	4	R _C 61, w/tip
				302	2427	HPP	3	$R_{C}61$, w/o tip
		60	2.00	300-321	2582	4R (82)	3	R <mark>C</mark> 61
				300	2366	6R(36)	10	RC55, SS
				321	2080	2R(33)	4	R _C 61, w/tip
				291-321	2025	4R(118)	9	Rc61, w/o tip

Part 1, Armo, Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(a) The great majority of these texts with the T148 shot were performed under Project TA1-1251. This project used three varieties of M72 shot with its tip cut off, and six varieties of M72 shot which were first softened, then had their tips cut off, and were rehardened. These six varieties, differing in windshield and heat-treatment, were designated T148. Since the reference report says no variety showed clear supersority, all are lumped together here. Included also are two lots used in Project TA1-1301. For more details, see Report 2 on Project TA1-1251.

(b) The tests with the T149 were part of Project TA1-1254. Shot were used with Rockwell C hardness either 61 or 55. In addition, those here marked w/tip were truncated, then had the tips reattached. Those marked w/o tip were truncated, but the tips were not replaced.

MEMONIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

ATTELLE

INSTITUTE

35

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballís	tic Limit	Number	Notes
al,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	0:	(Abbreviations
	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
		_					_	
16	M79	0	2.25	223	991	2R(36)	3	SI, t 2.24
			2.50	229-341	1089	SE = 15	17	SI
			3.00	251-363	1336	SE = 11	25	SI
				200	1578	SE = 64		
			4.00	{ 260	1640	SE = 70 >	18	SI
				(320	1762	SE = 48		
			5.00	212-269		2 to 2234	3	SI
				311	2577	HPP	5	SS
		10	3.00	363	1424	HPP	1	SS, t3.03
		20	2.25	223	102 0	2R(27)	5	SI, t 2.24
			3.00	302	1782	2R(41)	11	SI, t 3.05 937ARO
				363	1901	4 R(100)	8	SS, t 3.03
		30	2.25	223	1196	2R(20)	5	SI, t 2.24
				230	1315	SE = 51		
			2.50	∢ 310	1694	SE = 40 🔪	32	SI& S
				390	1750	SE = 63		
			3.00	302	2065	2R(24)	6	SS, t 3.05
				363	1)27	4 R(93)	7	55, t 3.03
			4.00	207-302	2532	SE = 34	14	SB& S
		40	2. 25	223-233	1852	SE = 37	16	SB& S
			3.00	331	2246	4R(74)	7	SS, t 3.05
				379	2012	2R(24)	7	SS. t 3.05
				(230	2004	SE amall		(SB&S. Parabola fitted
		45	2.50	310	2057	SE small	21	w/o overlapping by
				390	1963	SE small		PP's or CP's,
			3.00	331	2356	4R(92)	6	SS, t 3.05
		50	2.25	26 9 - 2 93	2032	4R(56)	Э	SS, t 2, 28
			3 00	379	2369	4R(95)	5	SS, t 3,05
		55	3.00	260	2876	2R(36)	3	SB& S
		60	2.00	306	2178	4R(32)	6	555
				(230	2626	SE = 12]	•	v.)
			2.39	230	2520	SE = 10 }	26	\$5
				340	2443	SE = 18	40	3 3
			3.00	235	2838		•	*•
			0.00	23J	103 0	28(3)	3	S

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor



36

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P1	ste	Ballisti	Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Ohl.	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
<u>mm</u>	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
76	T128E6	U	3.00	298	1517	6R(4 3)	15	SI
	(M339)			238	1987	6R(133)	9	S B &S
	(4.00	26 0	2043	SE = 34	16	SI&B
			5.00	26 0	2221	2R(8)	8	SI, t 5.13
		20	4.00	26 0	Mix 2088		13	SB&S
			5.00	260	2443	2R(39)	5	SB&S, t 5.13
		30	2.00	290	1358	SE = 43	10	SI
			2.50	291	1696	SE = 101	19	SB&S
			3.00	298	2519	6R(113)	16	SB&S, t 2.99
			4.00	260	2832	4R(95)	7	5 8, t 4 ,07
			5.00	250	317 9	HPP	4	
		45	2.00	290	1934	6R(151)	8	SB, t 2.04
			2.50	291	2266	6R(81)	Э	SB&S, t 2.52
			3.00	2 98	2718	6R(127)	7	SB, t 2.99
			4.00	26 0	3206	4R(61)	8	SB, t4.07
		55	3.00	302	2506	2R (55)	5	SB
		6 0	2.00	290-291	2481	SE = 15	15	SB& S
			2.50	291	2857	6R(135)	9	SB, t 2.52
			3.00	298	3198	4R(67)	7	SB, t 2,99
		65	2.00	2 90	2830	4R(64)	9	SB&S, t 2,04
			2.50	291	3112	6R (155)	8	SB&S, t 2.52
		75	2.00	290	3253	HPP	4	SB, t 2.02
76	T166(a)	30	4. 00	*=	2002	4R(73)	8	E2, R_66 , w /a WS, SS
					2653	4R(77)	9	F2, RC62, W/O WS, SS
					2382	2R(63)	8	E2, RCoi, W/o WS, SS
			3.00	298	2640HPP,		4	E1, SB&S, BL(P) = 234
				250	2554	4R(04)	7	E2, RC02, W/WS
				302	24+1	4R(103)	.)	E2, W/o tip or WS, SB
				230	2552	2R (46)	3	E3, SB
				26 0	2586	2R (61)	4	E4, SI&B
				2.)8	2572	4R (66)	6	E5, SB

.

(a) The tests with the T166 are from Project TA1-1301. The T166 shot is essentially the T128E6 (or M33") shot with its tip first removed then reattached by cementing or welding. The various modifications, E1 to E5, refer to slight changes in the geometry of the spive and tip. Modification E2, which was the preferred one, also was tested with or without the tip and/or windshield. and at various Rockwell G hardnesses at the bourrelet.

Probit analyses applied to all the T166 data for the first five combinations of obliquity and plate thickness give the following results, respectively: BI = 2703, SE = 58; BI = 2661, SE = 53; BI = 1401, SE = 46; BI = 2543, SE = 34; BI = 2533, SE = 61. These results illustrate the effects of grouping slightly divergent data.

SATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE CONFIDENTIAL

37

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P.	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A).	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
76	T166	6 0	2.00	288	1714	LCP	2	E1, SI
				289	2027	2R (58)	5	E2, RC06, W/o WS, SB
				291	1901	6R(152)	9	E2, w/o tip or WS, SL&
				289	2048	2R(51)	4	E2, R _C 57, w/o WS
				306	2047	LCP	5	E4, SI&B
				306	1340	2R(67)	6	e5, si&s
			2.50	306	2618	2R(1)	8	E2, R _C 62, W/WS, SI&E
				306	2514	2R (85)	7	E4, SI&B
				306	2579	4R(142)	6	E5, S B
			3.00	260	2977	HPP	4	E2, R _C 62, w/WS, SI&S
				26 0	2316	HPP	1	E4, SS
				295	2880	2R(37)	8	E5, SB
		70	2.00	291	2903	HPP	5	E2, w/o tip or WS, SB
								• •
90	M77	0	2.50	252	1281	LCP	5	5I
			3.50	262-289	1550	LCP	3	
				200	1537	SE = 46		
			4.00	26 0	1643	SE = 24 >	37	SI, 4 shattered
				320	1545	SE = 40		
			5.00	217-274	Mix 180-	4 to 2527	44	sides
			8.00	220	3204	HPP	2	SI, t7.94
		10	8.00	220	3430	HPP	2	55, t7.94
		20	2.50	255	1254	LCP	3	SI
			3.00		••	••	0	229 ARO
			5.00	220-228	Mix 199	5 to 2885	33	SBA S
			6.00	270-275	3146	HPP	10	55
		30	2. 50	229-311	1234	SE = 18	20	SI.
			4.00	207-269	2334	SE = 25	12	SBALS
			5.00	220	2703	4R(119)	5	SB, t 5, 15
					2938	2R(75)	5	35, t 5, 10
			6.00	220	3220	HPP	3	SS, CO. 10
		35	2.50	255	1489	4R(63)	ž	5 14.8
			2.00	(230	1803	SE = 24	3	3120
		45	2. 50	230	1843	SE = 20 >	38	584c 5
				350	1775	SE = 29	20	3443
			4.00	207-26.1	2614	6R(\$1)	10	SØ
			5,00	220-224	31.11			
		55	3, 00 2, 50			4R(105)	13	55, t4,37
		ΨŪ		252-255	203.7	SE = 18	12	55
			3.00	285	2429	4R(24)	8	5865, t 2, 29
		* ~	3.38	230-266	2642	SE = 34	43	\$5
		60	2.00	2.4	214 +	4R(75)		5.5
			. .	230	2323	SE small		55. * *abola fitted
			2, 50	300	2430	SE small >	23	Y with almost no overla
				370	2483	SE small		by PP's or CP's,

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

---- •

CONFIDENTIAL

• •

-

38

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	anoitaivs rddA)
<u></u>	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
9 0	Т33	0	2.50	229-364	1495	I.CP	9	SI
(mise, m		Ũ	4,00	210-300	1558	63(119)	16	SI
other the			4 .00	326	1307	LCP	5	SI
ouer un	n Eij		5,00	200-311	1873	SE = 14	31	SI
			6.00	265	2150	SE = 14 SE = 114	14	SI&B
			8,00	220	3234	HPP	* * 2	SS
		20	5.00	220-228	2008	SE = 53	271	
		30	4.00	220-280	1939	SE = 29	24	SI&S, acceptance tests SI&S
		30			2852			
			5.00	2 2 0-225		4R(51)	9	SB&S, t5,11
		• •	6.00	220	3244	HPP	3	SS, t6.06
		40	3.00	280	1880	6R(57)	13	SB, t3,02
		4 5	3.00	262	2000	2R(20)	10	SS, one PP at 2073
			5.00	225	3198	2R(97)	2	SS , t 5, 08
		55	3.00	280-302	23 70	SE = 50	25	SB
				285	2291	6R(148)	7	w/boom and tail
			3.38	230-263	2683	SE = 11	302	SS, acceptance tests
			4.00	282-294	3004	SE = 38	12	
		60	3.00	273-311	2613	SE = 17	56	SB
90	T33E7	0	5.00	259	1962	2R(113)	8	SI , t5, 10
not part o	f Proj-		6.00	256	2302	2R(5)	6	SI. t 5.96
ect AX2))	20	6.00	243	2418	2R(7)	8	SL&B. t 6.07
		30	4.00	308	2135	SE = 41	35	
		55	3,00	2×3-311	2371	SE = '10	B H	77 ARO
			4.00	234	3026	4R(95)	6	
		60	3.00	29 (2730	SE = 57	18	
9 0	T33E 7	20	5,00	277	2473	LCP	11	LR. R _C 62, t4,99
Project A	X23)(4)			271	∫ 2093	4R(80)	8	LR' R_62 SB
				aning a k	PP2626 t		20	LR', RC62, shatter gap
				277	2752	LCP	1	L11. RC56 SS. 14.99

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(*) Project AX23 was a test of steel for the shot T33E 77, with various lots differing metallurgically. The Rockwell C hardness of the different lots is shown here briefly. For example, R_C62 means hardness 62. Other metallurgical features can be found in Project AX23 reports b noting the lot numbers. Here LR and LR' denote the reference lot, with and without windshield; L1 to L10 denote Lots FA-PD-1 to FA-PD-10; and L11 denotes the lot made from FS-4160 steel.

In Project AX23, texts at obliquity 20 and 25 degrees were carried to velocities well above the low ballistic limits, in an effort to find velocity ranges where projectile sharetering might produce partial penetrations. This accounts for the multiple entries shown force for some ballistic limits.

CONFIDENTIAL

•

39

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

Part 1,	Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor
---------	--

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Balli	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHIN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
<u>m</u> .m	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
90	ГЗЗЕ7	20	6.00	26 9-2 80	Mix 249:	5 to 3155	51	LR, R _C 62, SB&S, t6,04
(Project A				270	2472	2R(27)	14	L5, R 62, SI&S, t6,03
tinued)	<i>x</i> ,				2 506	4R(86)	6	L1, R _C 61, SL&B, t6,02
thiceby				262-280	Mix 2944		16	L1, R _C 61, shatter PP's
					2530	4R(69)	6	L2, R _C 61, SI&B, t 6,07
				276-280	Mix 298		13	L2, R _C 61, shatter PP's
					2519	2R(72)	7	16, R _C 60, SI, t6, 02
				26 2- 270	Mix 2934		9	
				269- 276	Mix 253		2 7	L6, R_{C} 60, shatter PP's
				269-276	3158	HPP	18	L8, R _C 60, SB&S, t6.04
				100 110	2554		8	L10, R _C 60, SS, t6,03
				269-276	2909	6R(162)		L7, R _C 58, SI, t6.03
				269-275	3092		16	L7, R ⁵⁸ , shattered
				209-215	3092	4R(82)	14	L3, R _C 55, SB&S, t6.07
				270-280	3128	2R (9 5)	14	L4, R _C 52, SS, t6,04 One CP(A), no CP(P)
				26 2-2 76	3124	2R(73)	12	L9, R _C 50, SS, t6,04
							$\int One CP(A), \text{ no } CP(P)$	
		25	5,00	277	2206	2R(15)	3	LR, R _C 62, SB&S, t4, 39
					CP 2311		10	LR, R _C 62, SB&S, t4,99
				277	2891	LCP	1	LR', RC62, SB, t4,99
		30	4.00	299-3 00	Mix 1984	to 2584	28	LR', R <mark>C</mark> 62, SB&S, t3,98
			5.00	277	2825	2 R(78)	8	LR, R _C 62, SS, t4,98
				2 7 7	28 55	2R(2 2)	7	L1, R _C 61, SS , t4,98
				2 77	2944	2R(16)	3	L4, RC52, SS, 14,98
		55	3.00	299-3 01	2507	SE = 15	29	LR, R _C 62, SB &\$
				300	2511	6R(1 00)	11	LR', R_62, SS
				299	2 510	6R(47)	8	L5, R_62, SB&S, 13,02
				299	2457	4R(59)	7	L1, RC61, SB&S, t3,01
				299	2490	4R(35)	6	12. RC61. SS
				299	2589	6R(119)	8	L6, RC60, SS, 13.02
				302	2489	4R(77)	9	L8, R _C 60, SS
				285	2515	6R(68)	8	L10, RC60, SB&S, 12,9
				302	2512	2R(27)	7	L7, RC58, 55, 12,99
				299	2449	4R(19)	6	111, RC56, SS
				239	2518	6R(63)	7	13, Rc55, 56
				299	2441	6R(117)	7	14, RC52, SS
				285	2537	6R(1.2)	10	L9, RC50, SS, 12,99
			4.00	299	3160	2R(34)	13	LR', R _C 62, 56
		50	2.00	289	2428	dR(114)	#	12, Rc61, SS, t2.01
				294	2439	28(66)	ĥ	17. RC58. 5845
				284	2138	(R(84)	15	L4, RC12, 3845, 12,01 (mr. M(A) 11, 14, LR', RC42, 3865
			1. 00	299	266*	SR(114)	1G	LE BASS MAR
			• -			-1. / + 4. J	-4 M	THE R. L.C., 44 MINUS

CONFIDENTIAL

•

-

40

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Ob1.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm	No.	deg	<u>in.</u>	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
90	T43	55	3 ,00	302	2398	6R(22)	10	
35	140	00	4.00	210-326	2990	6R(116)	13	SS
90	T54E1	ο	7.60	258-29 7	3 205	НРР	7	SB&S, t7,65
		30	4.00	292	2068	6R(53)	10	SI&S, t4.01
			5,00	245-347	2982	SE = 61	33	SB&S
			6,00	249-296	3223	нрр	19	SS, t5,99
			7.60	258	3180	HPP	4	SS, t7,65
		45	4.00	295	255 3	SE = 38	15	SS
			5.00	245-337	3205	SE = 23	31	S B& S
			6.00	297	3121	HEP	5	SS, 16,62
		55	4.00	297-3 15	2847	SE = 53	26	SS
		60	2.00	285	2428	64(41)	10	SB, t2,03
				260	2651	SE = 31]		
			3.0 0	320	2631	SE = 18	41	S S
				390	2397	SE = 20		
				280	3182	SE = 78		
			4. 0u	2 340	3064	SE = 42	41	S S
				380	2995	SE = 39 5		
		65	3.00	256-306	3034	SE = 52	20	SS
		70	2.00	296	2860	4R(118)	9	SS
			3.00	307-381	3177	SE = 27	25	S S
105	T182	55	5,00	280-285	Mix 3040) to 3430	38	5 i&B
E2, E3,	E4, E5)	60	4.00	248-300	Mix 295)	to 3218	20	

Part 1, Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor



. . .

41

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

Part 1. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

	Shot	Nom.	<u> </u>	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t.	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbieviations
mm	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
190	T116	0	10.00	239	3298	6D (109)	o	
120 Mods E4,		0 20	10,00 7,60	248	3258 2464	6R(103)	8	E5, SB, t10,14
MOUS 14,	E0)	20	8,00	240 240	3344	2R(21)	7	E5, SB, t7,55
		30		240 241	23 02	2R(70)	6	E5, SB
		30 45	6,00 4,00	241 297	2302 1978	6R(68)	8	F5, SB&S, t6,07
		410	4,00 5,00	291	13+8 2243	2R(42)	7	E4, SB, t4,02
			3,00	267-287	2615	6R (142) SE = 07	10	E4, SB
			7,60	260	3369	SE = 27	17	E5, SB
		50		200 259		HPP CD4 105	3	E5, SB, 17,53
		50	5.00 6.00		2817	6R(105)	9	EE, SS, t5,09
		55	6.00	247 262	3127	HPP	2	E4, SB, t5,99
		55	4.00		2514 2040	4R(55)	7	E5, SS, t3,96
		60	5,00	267-287	294 2	SE = 72	16	Eo, SB
		60	2.00	283 095	1752	6R(87)	8	E5, SI&S, t2,02
			3.00	285	2353	4R(73)	7	E4 w/o WS, SS, 13.0
			4.00	297	2465	6R(105)	11	E4, SB, t4,03
			F	255	2830	4R(58)	6	E5, SB, t4,02
			5,00	293	2872	4R(93)	6	E4 w/o WS, 55
		บือ	2.00	277	2070	LCP	б	E5, SB, 12,02,
								$BL(P) = 2116, \ 6R(96)$
			3.00	293	2564	6R(111)	6	E5, SB, t3,04
			4,00	294	3064	2R(57)	ы	E4 w/o WS. SS. 14.00
				255	3106	LCP	6	E5, SB&S, (4,02, BL(P) = 3176, 6R(12
		70	2.00	285	2282	BR(84)	6	E5, SS, 12,02
			3.00	285	2962	4R(76)	5	E4 w/o WS, SS, 13,0
		75	2.00	294	2641	2R(18)	6	E5, SB, 12,03
			3.00	303	3296	HPP	4	E5, SB, t2.97
155	M112	0	5,00	250-2-4	1414	2R(41)	10	SI, 15,04
		15		5 1 .	1416			S1, 15,04,
		* '	•	244	1642	LCP	4	BL(P) = 10.72, 28(10)
				(210	1162	SE = 27)		(si
		30	4,00	210	135.5	v = 43	45	A NI
				3 50	1545	ST # INT		814.8
				62-0-212	1643	TCP	-	
			5 , 30	2: 0+242 250+269 30:+341	1937	+R(115)	11	51
				30.00311	2054	28(17)	10	SHEN
			க்தரி	265	2026	ICE	4	16.0.
		45		1200-274	2493	AR(101)	11	888.5x x7,44
		4 1	·. ,)	{200+2*4 238+336	2101	2#(6)	4	SHAN, THE PEAK 14
6 1m.	MEXXVII	15	5 , 60	255]@ #	₽C₽	1	{\s_r + s_r(a \$F(\) = √3 2€(

CONFIDENTIAL

٠

42

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	ate	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
nm	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
				_		_		
				240	199	SE = 15		
37	M51	0	1.00	320	1211	SE = 10	39	SI, 9ARO
				L400	891	SE = 13		
				240	1189	SE = 25	_	
			1,12	310	1260	SE = 14	60	SI
				380	1148	SE = 32		
			1.25	302	1455	4R(93)	4	SI
				230	1564	SE = 14	_	
			1.50	300	1630	SE = 7	67	
				370	1641	SE = 13		
			2.00	302-306	1949	4R(61)	6	8 ARO
			2.25	282	2304	2R(42)	3	t 2,36
				220	2226	SE = 15		
			2,50	280	2348	SE = 9 >	23	
				340	2517	SE = 11		
			3.00	281-288	2604	6 R(155)	6	SILLS
		10	1.12	302-321	1324	4R(83)	8	SI, t 1, 13
				250	1260	SE = 14		
		20	1.00	{ 32 0	1276	SE = 12	35	SI
				400	1062	SE = 20		
			1,12	302-321	1377	6R(56)	12	SL , t 1, 13
			1.25	302	1501	4R(76)	4	SI
				230	1634	SE = 16		
			1.50	₹ 300	1730	SE = 12 >	45	
				370	1774	SE = 16		
		25	1.00	324-385	1223	4R(88)	8	SI, 9 ARO
				(240	1409	SE = 17		
		30	1.00	320	1397	SE = 11	34	SI
				400	1396	SE = 16		
			1,12	302-326	1563	SE = 41	17	S1
			1.25	241-302	1614	6R(122)	13	SL, t 1, 26
				(220	1859	SE = 28]		•
			1.50	2 300	1902	SE = 16	48	
				370	2133	SE = 20		
		35	1.00	341-375	159R	SE = 14	41	SIA S
			1.25	302	1791	SE = 20	20	514.S
				240	1644	SE = 23)		Data from AD 686,
		40	1.00	320	1756	SE = 17	53	SI for BHIN 4 321,
				400	1779	SE = 22		SIAS for BHN > 341
				365	2158	28(31)	9)	Data from AD 1084,
				308-402	2110	6R(140)	ii	shot breakage in do
				429	2006	28(22)	4	compare with AP 6
				240	1706	SE = 60)	シ	C markets and up
			1, 12	310	1853	SE = 30	60	Я
			~~ ~~	1340	1806	SE = 67	44	A

CONFIDENTIAL

8 A T T I

INSTITUTE

Part 2. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

43

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A).	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm	No .	deg	in.	kg/mni ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
3 7	M51	40	1.25	241-25 5	1853	6R(133)	в	SI. (1.27
				311	2060	6R(124)	9	SI, t1,23
				230	2186	SE = 21		Data from AD 679.
			1,50	300	2311	SE = 19 >	58	SI for BHN & 302.
				370	2653	SE = 21		SIAB for BHN > 346
				302-364	3033	НРР	15]	SB. Data from AD 1084
				375	2794	2R(73)	3 }	Compare with AD 679
				240	2457	SE = 41	,	
		45	1.50	290	2649	SE = 31	40	
				340	28 75	SE = 73		
				(240	2183	SE = 56		Data from AD 686 and
		50	1.00	320	2242	SE = 30	86	AD 1084, SI for BHN
				400	2060	SE = 31	30	< 321, SI&S for BHN
				-				34 1
				240	2139	SE = 6 5		
			1, 12	310	2395	SE = 40 >	66	SI&B
				390	2433	SE = 80		
				241	2360	4R(144)	10	SI. Low precision BL
			1,25	255-269	2498	6R(72)	15	SI
				311	2812	2R(61)	9	SB, t 1,23
			1.50	229-255	2770	SE = 59	25	SI, (1,51
				266-373	2822	HPP	3	SI, 11,51
57	M86	0	1.25	302	1048	4R(79)	4	51
				240	1292	SE = 22		
			1,50	3 20	1227	SE = 23	5 6	
				360	799	SE = 21		
			2.00	255	1743	2R(46)	3	SI, (1.99
				(230	1864	SE = 13		
			₽. 50	290	1780	SE = 8	21	SI
				1 50	1702	SE = 23		
				260	2112	SE = 17]		287 6 - BUIN - 144
			3.00	130	1983	SE = 15	20	SI " T BHN & 14"
				450	1879	SE = 16		SB&S for BHN × 408
				210	2417	SE = 154		Can Commission and
			4,00	1 300	2545	SE = 9"	45	SI for BHN & 200
				3 90	2402	SF = 10"		SLAB for MIN 3 121
		20	1.25	302	1109	2R(M)	3	st
				240	1323	SE = 19]		
			1,50	1 300	13-2	SE = 15	29	54
				360	1141	ST = 16		
				260	2164	SE small		(SL. Parah a fined
			3, 20	2m	2116	SF small	20	with wet apping
				400	2119	SE small		h PPA + CPA

Part 2. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

۰

٠

.

44

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t.	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mun	No.	deg	in.	kg/m m ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27
57	M86	20	4.00	2 2 0	2503	6R(148)	10	SI
				357-388	2807	HPP	10	SB&S, t 4.01
		25	3.00	347	2397	2R(26)	4	SI&B, t 3.04
			4.00	388	2755	HPP	4	SS, t 4. 02
		30	1.25	2 ³⁰²	1264	2R(20)	4	SI
				240	1432	SE = 19		
			1.50	300	1470	SE = 15	> 31	SI
				360	1359	SE = 18		
			2.00	258-277	1755	SE = 10	15	51
				220	1826	SE = 60		SI for BHN & 311
			2.50	{ 290	2116	S E = 31	> 24	SB&S for BHN > 341
				360	2153	SE = 36		
				260	2278	SE = 50		SI&B for BHN - 323
			3.00	330	2648	SE = 27	167	\leq SS for BHN = 350
				400	2613	SE = 43		SI&S for BHN = 400
			4,00	225	255U	HEP	2	SI
				388	2757	HPP	4	SS, t4.02
				261-289	2732	SE = 111	52	5 1&B
		35	3.00	298-320	Mix 250	1 to 2792	105	SI&S, probit diverge
				347-360	PP2516	to 2812	26	58, Ione CP at 2743
				400-408	2724	SE = 10 +	32	88
		40	1.25	277-302	1465	6R(C+)	7	SI
				230	1675	SE = 16		
			1.50	300	1646	SE = 10	> 25	M
				360	1707	SE = 12		
			2.00	∫ 241-285	1 177	SE = 7	18]	SI, Parabolic probit
				300	2128	SE = 23	17 ∫	did not converge
				č 22u	2181	SE=67		CSI for BHN + 277
			2.50	2.00	24)6	SE = 23	82	SIAN for BHN , 311
				360	2695	SE = 30		
				₹ 2H0	2724	HPP	7	14.5
			3. 04	160	277.4	IPP	6	55
				400	271 +	28(12)	10	**
		45	1.50	255-214	183+	SE • 30	16	
			2.00	285	2343	SE = 24	11	st
			2, 50	360	26 (5	HPP		SIA 5, 1 2.4+
		Set	1.25	262-302	1:21	6R (85)		1
				(230	1453	SE=25		-
			1, 50	2 340	2044	SE = 13	78	SI for HIN 2.33
				370	2022	SE + 14		SHAW for DHIN & 332
				240				-
			7,00	300	2525 2735	SE = 154		SI for ININ \$ 245
			A & LINE	1		SE # #"	r ~	ALS IN BHY 2 3.
			· 1	()*0	2621	SE N RA	,	
			** 3	22+-322	26 ···	HPP	11	SIA S. F 4

Part 2. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

45

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

_

	Shot	Nom.	Pl	ate	Ballist	ic Limit	Number	Notes							
al,	Model	оы.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations							
0.00	No.	d2g	in	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27							
57	M86	55	1.50	269	2341	2R(48)	5	t 1.48							
			2.00	285-302	PP 2585		15	SI, lone CP at 2691							
			2.50	3 53	2705	HPP	5	SB, t 2.51							
		60	1.25	273-352	2179	SE = 28	30	SI							
				230	2468	SE = 46									
			1.50	∢ 3 00	2634	SE = 33 >	53	SI							
				36 0	2592	SE = 48									
		65	1.25	316-352	2504	SE = 24	23	SI&B							
		70	1.25	277-341	PP 2573	to 2710	21	SI, lone CP at 2664							
15	M61	0	1.50	287	952	HPP	1								
			2.25	282	1175	2R(64)	8	SI, t 2.36, one PP							
			4.00	202	1596	2R(41)	3	SI, t 3.98							
				273	1755	2R(34)	3	SI, t 3.98							
		20	2.25	282	1548	2R(57)	5	sl, t 2.36							
			3. 00	262	1971	2R (36)	3	51, 1489ARC							
		25	1.50	267-287	958	SE = 4	17	51							
		30	5.00	224	3175	HPP	3	SIAS, t 5. 12							
									45 60	2.50	269	2097	HPP	1 55, t 2, 51	
										1.50	265-265	2047	2R (6)	4	
			2.00	262	2095	HPP	2								
				400	1782	LCP	1								
5	T42	20	5.00	225	23 24	4R (59)	4	55							
	-	55	3, 38	253	2129	HPP	2	55, t 3,44							
							•	331 1 31 44							
6	M62	0	2, 25	223-293	1348	SE = 5	24	SI							
				(230	1420	SE = 29									
			2, 50	₹ 290	1375	SE = 21 >	26	*t							
				340	947	SE = 26									
				[300	1503	SE = 51									
			3.00	350	1330	SE = 43 >	23	SL							
				400	1206	SE = 31									
			4,00	204-326	1987	SE = 34	26	SI, one CP at 1787							
		20	2, 25	223-293	1446	SE = 15	14	4							
			3,00	302-348	1729	We(153)	3	NI, 214ANO							
				(240	2:11	SE = So]		SI for BHIN & 273							
			4.00	280	2317	SE . JY	a f	NOAS for BHIN ; 302							
				330	2516	SE = 47		21480							
		25	1, 25	286	1476	++ (13)	6	k k							

CONFIDENTIAL

1e- a:

46

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	Pl	ste	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal.	Model	Obl.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
			· ·····	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		······		<u> </u>
76	M62	30	2.00	235-277	1472	SE = 16	13	SI
			2,25	223-23	1500	SE = 22	23	SI
				230	1627	SE = 43		
			2.50	〈 2 90	1672	SE = 26 🖌	23	SI
				340	1558	SE = 38		
				220	1534	SE = 181		
			3.00	310	1735	SE = 89 🗲	€4	SI&S
				410	2285	SE = 255		
			4.00	202-273	2333	6R(169)	13	SI
				244 - 3 02	2674	6R(74)	14	SB&S (thatter gap)
		4 0	2.00	235-26 9	1861	SE = 48	13	SI&B
			2, 25	223-233	1772	SE = 59	27	SI
				(220	2146	SE = 77		
			3.00	310	2437	SE = 43 >	36	SS
				400	2211	SE = 51		
				230	1438	SE = 59		
		45	1.50	300	1460	SE = 28	52	SI
				370	1408	SE = 23		
			2.00	235-269	1789	SE = 19	19	SI
			2.25	258	2079	6R (99)	9	
			2,36	255	1983	6R(98)	11	τ 2, 31
				230	2014	SE = 118]		
			2.50	310	2280	SE = 76	47	S I&B
				390	2287	SE = 122		
			3.00	259	2440	HPP	1	ŝS
		50	2,00	248	2082	2R(61)	3	SI
			2.25	223-293	2309	SE = 56	30	51
		55	2.25	258	2664	2R (78)	3	
			2, 36	255		7 to 2684	8	t 2,31
			2, 50	229	2592	HPP	1	SI
				(230	2114	SE • 57		•-
		60	1, 50	300	2200	SE = 31 }	45	51
				370	2082	SE = 37		
			2 00	235-211	2640	4R(100)	11	SI, t 1, 99
			2, 25	248	2649	HPP	2	
			2, 50	229-341	2662	HPP	5	sī, t 2, 31
-		<i></i>	4					
0	M82	0	2, 50	252	1310	2R(115)	7	SI
			3,00	229	Mix 161)		7	SI
			3, 50	262-289	1390	LCP	2	
				200	1794	SE = 107		
			4.00	280	2030	SE = 66 >	19	SI
				320	1713	SE = 87		
			5.00	274	2334	3 R(32)	5	t 5.07
			\$,00	220	3236	122	2	50, t.7, 14

Part 2. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

.

-

47

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.		late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
11111	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
		10						
90	M82	10	6.00	236	2592	2R(45)	11	SI
		••	8.00	209	3115	LCP	2	SI, HPP(P) = 3145 , t 7.94
		20	2.50	255	1418	2R(36)	4	SI
			3.00	229-285	1612	6R (95)	9	t 3.01
			4.00	204-326	2019	SE = 37	28	SI
			5.00	220-232	2442	SE = 15	42	SI&B
				230	1569	SE small		SI. Parabola fitted
		30	2.50	{ 280	1487	SE small >	17	with almost no over-
				340	1433	SE small		lap by PP's or CP's
				220	1818	SE = 15		
			3.00	280	1778	SE = 10 }	48	
				340	1744	SE = 17 J		
				200	1316	SE = 157		
			4.00	26 0	2253	SE = 68 >	52	SI
				320	2500	SE = 170)		
			5.00	200-300	2654	SE = 48	55	S1
			6.00	220	3041	2R (62)	3	SE, t6.03
		35	2.50	255	1720	6R(127)	8	SI
			3.00	226-293	1854	6R (83)	12	t 2, 98
		40	3.00	235	2050	LCP	4	SI&B
			4.00	223	2711	4R(142)	6	SI
		45	2.36	255	1330	2R(63)	3	t 2, 31
				(220	1975	SE = 61		
			2.50	290	2075	SE = 35 >	41	SILLS
				360	1936	SE = 45		
				230	2185	SE = 35		
			3.00	280	23.)3	SE = 21	201	SI4 S
				340	2357	SE = 60		
			4.00	202-204	2617	6R(149)	7	SI, t 3.∄7
				244-273	2820	HPP	4	SIAS, 13.98
			5,00	220-224	3184	4R(25)	8	SI&S, t 5,02
		50	2, 25	258		3 to 2231	7	
			2, 50	263	2386	2R(27)		55, t 2.51
			3,00	226-283	2592	SE = 56	18	JJ; C 8. VA
		55	2. 36	255	2421	28(61)	3	t 2.31
		~~	2,50	255- 26 ¥	2607	SE = 25	12	SI SI
			3.00	269	2786	HPP	2	J
			3,38	243-2 6 3	3231	ŭK., 137)	11	
		đũ	2.25	256	2564	LCP		SBES, 13,45
		44	2, 50	229-311			3	CP(N) at 2504
			2. RV	×*****	2840	4R(\$*)	11	M&S, 1 2, 53

Part 2. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

- .

I

ł

12

L

48

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

Cal,	Shot		n. <u>Plate</u>		Ballistic Limit		Number	Notes
	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm.	No.	deg	ín.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
90	T25	20	5.00	220	2314	2R(39)	7	SL&B, t 5,03
	T26	20	5.00	220	Mix 217	4 to 2322	8	SI&S, t 5,04
	T27	20	5.00	220	24.21	6R(88)	8	SB&S, t 5.04
	T28	20	5,00	220	2366	4R(124)	7	SI&S, t 5.03
90	T3 9	30	5 . 00	220-223	Mix 219	6 to 2585	58	SI&S, 13 special lots
		45	3.00	262	2253	6R(74)	13	SS, 1 lot
			5.00	220-223	3061	SE = 74	27	SL&S, 5 special lots
		55	3.00	280-320	2735	SE = 68	83	SS, 1 lot
			3.38	263-270	2965	SE = 166	45	SS, 8 special lots
		60	2.00	285	2373	4R(62)	3	58, t 2.03, 1 lot
	1 - 1							
90	T 50(a)	45	5.00	220-224	2390	SE = 19	55	SI&S, 8 special lots
		55	3.38	243-260	Mix 281	1 to 3251	46	SB&S, 8 special lots
90	T 50E1	0	5,00	259	2176	6R(90)	8	SI, t 5.10
			6.00	256	2385	4R(90)	9	SI, t 5.96
			7.60	258-297	2845	SE = 21	21	SI
		20	6.00	248	2562	2R(40)	7	SI&B, t 6.07
			H, 00	240	3280	HPP	4	SB
		30	3.00	291	1731	6R(103)	12	58
			4.00	230-292	2154	SE = 5	22	SI
				(240	2308	SE = 1)		
			5.00	290	2578	SE = 34 }	30	SI
				340	1462	SE = 18		••
			6.00	297	∷ 2104	6R(124)	10	SILLB, t 6,02
			7.60	237	3214	HPP	10	SI&B, 1 7.47
		40	6.00	256	3193	6R(+8)	6	85, t 5, 36
		45	4.00	262	2157	6R (12J)	8	55
			·	2.45	2874	6R(161)	i	55
			5.00	245	2+64	48 (46)	10	SI.
				275-337	3182	HPP	11	S S
			6.00	217	3114	HPP	3	SB, 1 6,02
		55	3.00	290~300	2517	SE = 78	41	SS .
			4.00	237-315		6 to 3136	20	SBAS, 14.06
		60	3.00	265-394	24.54	SE = 15	34	SMAS
			4,00	230	3174	HPF	6	55, t 4,03
				371	3097	28(28)	5	59 8 71 80
		45	3.00	300-305	3141	A (73)	24	55 1 3,04
		70	2,00	291	2006	SR (79)	10	35, 1 2.01
		-		(107	2144	187	4	M. 1 3.02
			5,00	1.341	2354	+#*	1	55. 2 3. 05
				388	2245	4R · 26)	11 A	τα, π φ έχα

RIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

1 N

TUTE

Part 2. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(a) These tests used nine special lots, See Firing Records 231"27 and P60411.

ELLE

....

....

-

49

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	7	ate	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
<u>mm</u>	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
105	T13	30	4.00	220	2115	LCP	1	El; SB
Mods E1,	E2, and E3)		5.00		2187	6R(99)	14	E1, E2, E3; SI&B
			6.00	••	2664	LCP	2	E1. E2
		55	3.00		2612	2R(19)	3	E1; SI&B
105	T32E1	30	7.00	210	25 3 7	SE = 18	27	SI&B
		45	5,00	221	2620	SE = 18	25	SILLS
			6.00	243	2890	6R(102)	9	SLAS
		55	4.00	225	2975	6R(155)	12	SB&S, t4,01
120	T14	20	9,00	209	2482	4R(58)	11	SI, t8.06
		30	8,00	208	2719	SE = 22	23	SL&B
		45	6.00	••	2892	SE = 43	46	SB&S
120	T14	0	8.00	238	2482	2R(41)	6	E3 w/cap; SL, 17,96
Mods E1,	E3) (4)	20	8.00	239	2669	2R(40)	8	E3 w/cap; SI&B, 17.9
		30	6.00	26 5	2439	2R(36)	5	E3 w/cap; SI, 16,02
			7.60	262	2823	4R(77)	6	E3 w/o cap; SI, t7,6
			8.00	210	2678	LCP	4	E1 w/cap; SL, t8, 12
				210	3334	2 R(137)	5	E1 w/u cap; SS, 18,1
		45	4.00	291	2427	4R(70)	5	E3 w/cap; S8, t4,04
			6.00	252 -263	3180	6R(38)	11	E3 w/cap. SB
				225	2866	2R(41)	7	El w/cap; SL, t6,06
				225-232	3334	4R(132)	10	E1, E3 both w/o cap; SB&S, t6,05
		55	5.00	256	2999	6R(160)	6	E3 w/cap; SB
		60	3.00	269	2515	4R(63)	6	E? w/cap; 58
			4.00	225-297	Mix 280	• •	20	E3 w/cap; SB, 13,98
				233	1914	2R(26)	5	E3 w/o cap; S8
			5.00	266	3091	HPP	2	E3 w/cap; 58
		70	2.00	302	2200	48(37)	6	E3 w/cap; SS

Part 2, Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(a) These tests are those reported in Firing Records P464"1 and P4134",

- - ----

50

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

Ballistic Limit Number Notes Plate Shot Nom. Signifiof (Abbreviations Model Obl. Nom. t, BHN, BL(A), Cal. kg/mm² explained on p 27) ft/sec Rounds in. cance No. deg min T27 20 3.00 1888 6 75 2R(47) ----6.00 2694 HPP $\mathbf{2}$ 30 3.00 2303 3 - -2R(40) 5.00 --2526 2R(46) 4 t 5.12 76 M93 0 6.00 213-225 2534 4R(94) 8 ŝΙ 8,00 220 et al. 2375 4R (25) 13 SB 30 4.00 220-229 2265 SE = 108 27 SB& S 6.00 220-245 2343 SE = 19 16 SB 320 Mix 2767 to 3357 13 320 40 4.00 3276 2R(52) 4 210 2968 SE = 86 45 250 3065 SE = 53 30 4.00 **3**00 3765 SE = 298 220 2 6.00 --SB, HPP(P) = 3403 - -255 3344 55 3.00 4R(114) 6 88 76 **T4** 0 3.25 235 6 1564 2R(123) T4E17, 55, t 3.31 3,25 (various mods) 20 235 1775 LCP 4 T4E17, 55, t 3, 31 4.00 220 2162 6 2R (81) **T4** 6.00 250 2724 2R(1) 13 T4, SBCS 220 2719 LCP 5 T4E17, 85 8.00 208 3167 2R(100) 6 T4. t 8.93 30 3.00 231 6 1+72 2R(10) T4 3.25 2072 235 2R (46) 3 T4E17, 55, 12.31 220-240 4.00 2595 55=80 44 T4, 55 220-240 Max 2274 to 2561 31 T4E17, 55 220-225 Nux 2066 to 2525 120 T4E20, SB&S 5.00 250 2825PP. 3040CP 3 T4, 55 6.00 220 30.99 2R(86) 5 T4, 55, t 5, 37 49 3.25 235 24 10 4R(4) 6 T4E17, 55, 13.31 50 3.25 235 310) T4E17, 55, 13.34 2R(53) 6 55 3.00 255 33.12 HPP Ĩ) T4, 55 25) **33**90 HPP T4E17, 35 2 3.25 235 3355PP. T4E17, 55, 03, 31 3545CP 4

Part 3. High-Velocity Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor



والمحجوب والمحجوب المحجوبين والمحجوب

51

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	Pl	ste	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.	Nom. t,	RHN	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations explained on p 27)
	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 21)
76	Special(a)	0	8.00	226 et al.	Mix 262	3 to 3742	48	10 shot designs, SI&B
10	special	30	4,00	285	2516	4R(115)	5	1 shot design, SB&S
		00	6.00	220-230		18 to 3527	59	14 shot designs, SB
		45	4.00	235		3 to 3294	13	3 shot designs, SI&S
		10	6.00	220	3775	HPP	7	3 shot designs, SB&S
		55	3.00	240-277		4 to 3927	45	14 shot designs, SB&S
16	T 29(b)	Q	8.00	220	3612	2 R (38)	ů	T29E2
	us models)	•		220	2702	2R (28)	5	T29E5
(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		30	6.00	320	3793	HPP	3	T2)
				320	3017	2R(28)	5	T29 E2
				255	2671	22 (35)	5	T29E5
		45	4.00	240	3576	2R(15)	7	T29
		55	3.00	250	2856	2R (56)	5	T24E5
76	T6 5 E3	30	4.00	289	26.36	2R (36)	5	
			6.00	253	4036	6R(107)	10	
		60	2.00	••			0	176ARO
76	M 3 31	0	7.00	246	2998	6R(144)	ಕ	N(331A2
(vario	us models)	30	4.00		2663	2R(54)	7	M331A1
(H	VAP-DS)		6.00	248	3198	6R(73)	8	M331A2
·			7.00	238-283	33 32	SE = 41	47	M331
				248	3532	2R(3)	•	M331A1
				248	34.33	6R(155)	6	M331E3(C)
				248	3493	6R(133)	6	Lot KNC-E-1(c)
				248	3572	6K(101)	8	Lot KNC-E-2(c)
				248	3611	6R(170)	b	Lot KNC-E-3(")
			8.00	239	3815	6R(13)	8	M331A1
		45	4.00	300	3703	6R(54)	10	M331A2
		55	3.00	285-307	3588	SE = 43	61	M331A1
				285-307	3580	SE = 16	13	M331A2
		50	2.00	265	3110	6R(133)	11	M331A2
			3.00	283	3450	SE = 29	24	M331
				256	3186	6R(112)	10	M331A1
				281-295	3173	SË # 58	16	M331A2
			4.00	308	4323	HPP	3	MJJ1A1

Part 3. High-Velocity Armor Piercing Piojectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(a) The torm have summarized briefly are described in Firing Records P41546, P42035, and P43564. The tests involved 14 varieties of abor, generally related to the T4, but with several novel changes in geometry and materials. A brief description of these shots is not feasible, but they are described in the reference records.

(b) These tools are reported in Firing Records P46546 and P46494,

(c) These tools are reported in Firing Necord P53966. The lots vary metallargically.

CONFIDENTIAL

٠

52

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	Pl	ate	Ballist	ic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm	No	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
90	M304	0	7.60	258-304	2523	SE = 15	21	SL&B
		30	4.00	280	2178	SE = 37	21	SB
		-	5.00	275	2298	6R(59)	10	SB
				338	2397	4R(53)	10	SS, t 4.97
				(22)	2468	SE = 59]		
			6.00	260	2559	SE = 41 >	165	SILS, 392ARO
				300	2882	SE = 65		
			7.60	262	2936	4R(68)	10	SB, t 7.65
				297	3208	6R(166)	11	SI&B, t 7.47
			8.00	239	3140	2R (62)	9	SIAB, t 7.96
		45	4.00	280		7 to 3208	30	S3, t 4.08. By probit BL = 2938, SE = 201.
			5.00	275-320	3527	SE = 9	22	SS
			6.00	249	3723	HPP	10	SB, lone CP at 3700
				297	3548	HPP	8	SS, t 6.02
			7.60	275-297	3750	HPP	9	SB&S, t 7, 54
		55	3.00	280	3011	4R(46)	5	SB, t 3.01
				(200	3400	SE = 39]		•
			4.00	₹ 280	3607	SE = 18	61	SS
				360	3462	SE = 25		
		60	3.00	257-321	3285	SE = 46	34	SB& S
			4.00	290-358	3748	HPP	14	SS
				391	3556	5R(80)	13	SS, t 3.98
		65	3.00	257	3556	6R (64)	10	SS
				363	3640	2R(17)	10	SS, t 3,05
				391	3432	6R(71)	11	SS
		70	3.00	319-391	3846	1 2P	7	SB4: S
90	M304 ^(a)	0	14.00	203	2822	2R (58)	3	
(₩/20	lb core)	30	6.00	252	1689PP,	1951CP	4	58
		45	6.00	252	3124	HPP	3	55
90	M382	30	6.00	251-285		ð to 3591	40	ësan o
			8,00	235	4100	HPP	3	
		00	3.00	302	3373	6R(129)		

Part 3. High-Velocity Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(4) These toos with a 20-1b core are described in Firing Record P41354.



, · · · •

٠

ļ

J

53

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P	late	Ballisti	c Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	Obl.	Nom. t.	BHN,	BL(A).	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
<u>mm</u>	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
90	T3 0	0	8.00	208-220	2481	6R(113)	12	T30E16, SI, t 8.0 €
(vario	us models)		10,00	220	2733PP,	2916CP	5	T30E16, SI&S
•	•		12,00	220	3298	2R(53)	4	T30E16, SI&S, t 12, 19
		20	6.00	245	2151PP,	2291CP	5	T30E16, SB&S, t 6.06
			8,00	220	2765	2R(54)	5	T30E16, SS
			10.00	205	3110	2R(67)	5	T30E16, SB&S
		30	4,00	220	1958	2R(41)	2	T30E16, SB&S, t 4.03
			6.00	244-245	2407	SE = 106	37	T30E16, SB&S, 110AR
			8.00	220	2906	2R(74)	5	T30E16, SS
		45	4.00	220	2739	2R (108)	Э	T30E16, SS, t 3.97
				210	3284	SE = 34		• •
			5.00	< 260	3610	SE = 34	21	T30E16, SI&S
				310	3 693	SE = 39		•
			6.00	244	3336	2R(60)	5	T30E15, SS, τ 6.06
		55	3.38	235	3376	2R (93)	3	T30E8, t 3.31
90	T44	0	8.00	260	2605	SE small		(SI&B. Parabola fitted
				₹ 330	2755	SE small	23	with almost no over-
				390	2665	SE small		lap by PP's & CP's
		10	8.00	339	2354	4R(103)	4	SI&S, t 8.06
				390	2665	4R(63)	5	SL&S, t 7.98
		20	8.00	339-390	3185	SE = 91	23	SILLS
		25	8.00	260	3026	2R(37)	10	SL&S, t 8.04
				339	3666	HTF	8	SI&S, 1 8,00
		35	8.00	260	3377	GR (156)	10	Side5, t 8.04
				339	3699	HPP	4	55, t 8,06
		40	8.00	26 0	3695	2R(8)	6	SMLB, t 8, 94
		45	8.00	260	3721	HPP	2	SB&S, 1 8.04
90	T 53	0	14.00	••	3626 PP ,	3178CP	4	Sidd, t 14.25
		30	6.00	**	2212	2R (34)	5	SB, t 5.62
90	T6584	55	4.00	228	3531	JR (65)	5	HVAP-DS, SB&S

Part 3. High-Velocity Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor



54

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	Pl	ate	Ballist	ic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model No.	Obl., deg	Nom. t, in.	BHN, kg/mm ²	BL(A), ft/sec	Signifi- cance	of Rounds	(Abbreviations explained on p 27)
90	T137(a)	10	7.00	279	2561	6R(152)	9	E1 Mod 3(c)
(variou	as models)			279		i to 2300	8	E9 Mod 3(d)
•	AP-DS)	30	4.00	277	44.27	LCP	,	E9 Mod 3(d)
•	•		6.00	262	3831PP,	4018CP	5	E1(°)
				262	•	to 3948	13	E9 Mod 1, E9 Mod 2(d)
			7.00	242-254	3704PP.	3983CP	16	E1 hlod 3(c)
				242	4309PP	4424CP	2	E9 Mod 3(d)
			8.00	235-249	Mix 3130		26	El Mod 2(b)
				235	4637	HPP	3	E9 Mod $2^{(d)}$
		45	4.00	277	2304	2R(67)	8	El Mod 3(C)
		55	4.00	248-294	Mix 3608		15	EO, E1 Mod 2, E2, E4(1
				269-293	3707	12R(110)	30	E1, E1 Mod 3(C)
				248-300	3966	SE = 61	45	E0, E9 Mods 1, 2, 3 ^(d)
				270	3900	2R(1)	6	EC, 25 Model 1, 2, 3 -7 E21(e)
			5.00	285-288	4317	HPP	8	E0, E2, E4(b)
				285	4260	HPP	1	E)(d)
		60	3.00	285	3624	2R(35)	5	ET, B (C)
			4.00	248-294	4115	6R(33)	13	E0, E2, E4 ^(b)
				248-308	Mix 3817		15	E1 Mod 3, E7, DI(C)
				270-291	4627	HPP	6	E3, Mods 1 and $2^{(d)}$
							-	
105	T2964	0	14.00	200	3562	2R(40)	4	S S
		30	6.00	242	2310	2R(54)	6	SS
			10.00	197	3326	2R(51)	7	S S
		45	4.00	225	27:99	LCP	4	SS, BL(P) = 2830, 28(6)
		60	4.00	225	347.JPP,	3621CP	4	\$5
155	T35	Ö	14.00	••	3385	HPP	3	SB , t 14, 25
		30	6.00	**	222022.	2434CP	4	50, 1 5, 88
			10.00	205	2562	4R(67)	5	5845, 1 J.97
		43	6.00	**	2962	28(26)	4	55, t 5, x7
155	TISE	0	14.00	252	2042	28(85)	3	
(W/30-	ib carej	30	6.00	203	2876	28(77)	3	-963

. .

•

Part 3. High-Velocity Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Rolled Homogeneous Armor

(a) Many designs of HVAPDS-T, 90 mm, T13's were sensed as part of Project TA1-166's. For a description of them, see pp 5,7, and 5 of Report 23 on that project. The ones used above were \$0.50 mm varieties.

(b) These models apparently had an \$,00-W core with ogival noise.

(c) These models apparently had a 7,35 or 7,45-10 core with double conical nose,

(d) These models apparently had a 6,00-th core with double conscal score.

(c) This model had a "very long" over of uncertain weight.



55

TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

	Shot	Nom.	P1	late	Ballis	tic Limit	Number	Notes
Cal,	Model	ОЫ.,	Nom. t,	BHN,	BL(A),	Signifi-	of	(Abbreviations
mm	No.	deg	in.	kg/mm ²	ft/sec	cance	Rounds	explained on p 27)
37	N174	0	1.00				0	НЗА Г.О
•••				230	1225	SE = 22	v	
			1.50	280	1289	SE = 7	376	SI, 5ARO
				330	1120	SE = 26	0.0	
			1.75	252	1422	2R(45)	5	t 1. 31
				230	1559	SE = 9	•	
			2.00	270	1672	SE = 6	520	SI
				310	1720	SE = 27		5
				199-232		19 to 2226	20	Probit analysis tailed
			3.00	235-270		4 to 2435	92	to converge.
				288-305	PP2252		18	$\int SI de S, t = 2.81 \text{ to } 3.4$
				150	1269	SE = 24		(3123, 1 = 2.51 10 3.4
		45	1.00	240	1525	SE = 26	60	SILLB
		••	1,00	320	1622	SE = 24	00	SIGEB
		60	1.00	296-326	2403	SE = 17	156	SI& S
			1.00	200-020	2403	36 - 1,	1.10	2162 2
57	M70	0	2.00	220	1132	SE= 18]		
				₹ 260	1187	SE= J	76	SI
				300	1133	SE = 14		-
			2.25	248-283	1249	SE = 64	20	
				(1)0	1384	SE = 75]		
			3.00	260	1652	SE = 14 >	309	SI
				330	15 10	SE = 34		
				(217-236	2076	6R(11.)	12	st
			4.00	242-277	2138	SE = 21	5 3	st
			4.00	301	2244	27(4)	4	SI
				(323	2727	GR(84)	11	55
		20	3.00	272	185.)	6R(85)	10	SI&S, t 3. 10
		30	4.00	323	2975	HPP	5	
		••		(220	2170	SE = 28)		35, t 4, 16
		35	3.00	270	2545	SE = 13	37	***
			.	320			31	SBES
		40	2.00	251	2425	SE=1J		
			2.00	(220	1890	2R(25)	,•	55, t 2.96
			3.00	250	2825	SE = 20		
			J. W		2700	SE= 30 >	36	SBAS
		10		(310	2522	SE = 22		
		3 0	2.00	264-301	3414	5E = 35	21	S DE S
		36	2.00	253-287	2504	5L = 23	166	50A.5
				200	2829	ગદ∗ અ]		
		••	2,99	390	2762	SE = 10 }	147	SING S
				(499	2045	SE = 120		
		#5	2. 00	255	20 S.K	28(197)	4	M. t 2.04

Part 4. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Cast Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

~~~~~~

#### 56

### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

|           | Shot   | Nom.      | Pi      | late               | Ballis | tic Limit        | Number | Notes               |
|-----------|--------|-----------|---------|--------------------|--------|------------------|--------|---------------------|
| Cal,      | Model  | Obl.      | Nom. t, | BHN,               | BL(A), | Signifi-         | of     | (Abbreviations      |
| <u>mm</u> | No.    | deg       | in.     | kg/mm <sup>2</sup> | ft/sec | cance            | Rounds | explained on p 27)  |
|           |        |           |         | <i>(</i> *         |        | <b>_</b>         |        |                     |
|           |        |           |         | 130                | 1156   | SE = 65          |        |                     |
| 75        | M72    | 0         | 3.00    | 1 250              | 1248   | SE=7 }           | 1015   | SI                  |
|           |        |           |         | 310                | 1194   | SE = 35          |        |                     |
|           |        |           | 3.25    | 248                | 1263   | HPP              | 2      |                     |
|           |        |           |         | 160                | 1466   | SE = 85          |        |                     |
|           |        |           | 4.00    | 230                | 1602   | SE = 19          | 190    | SI                  |
|           |        |           |         | (300               | 1718   | SE = 46          |        |                     |
|           |        |           | 6.00    | 228                | 2058   | HPP              | 2      | SI .                |
|           |        | 20        | 4.00    | 193                | 1852   | 2R(67)           | 4      | SB                  |
| 75        | M79    | 30        | 3.00    | 28)                | 1959   | 2R(92)           | 8      | SS, t 2.85          |
| 76        | T128E6 | 20        | 4.00    | 251                | 2118   | 6R(12 <b>2)</b>  | 11     | SB&S, t 4,02        |
|           | (M339) | 30        | 2.00    | 255                | 1210   | 2R(15)           | 8      | SI&B, t 2.04        |
|           |        |           | 4.00    | 251                | 2610   | 6R(81)           | 8      | SS, t4.02           |
|           |        | 45        | 2,00    | 255                | 1768   | 2R(21)           | 7      | Sī, t 2.04          |
|           |        |           | 4.00    | 251                | 2824   | 2R(43)           | 7      | SB&S, t 4.02        |
|           |        | 55        | 4.00    | 251                | 3212   | <b>6</b> R(100)  | 9      | 55, t4.02           |
|           |        |           |         | (190               | 1084   | SE = 66)         |        |                     |
| 90        | M77    | 0         | 3.00    | < 240              | 1099   | SE = 20 >        | 61     |                     |
|           |        |           |         | 290                | 1135   | SE = 70          |        |                     |
|           |        |           |         | <b>7</b> 190       | 1433   | SE = 695         |        |                     |
|           |        |           | 4.00    | 240                | 1452   | SE = 21          | 177    | SI, 346ARO          |
|           |        |           |         | 290                | 1356   | SE = 40          |        |                     |
|           |        |           | 5,00    | 218-259            | 1699   | SE = 44          | 23     | SI                  |
|           |        |           | 6.00    | 183-232            | 2007   | ⇒ <b>E = 2</b> 5 | 49     | \$I                 |
|           |        |           | 8.00    | 206                | 3124   | HPP              | 1      | 55                  |
|           |        | 20        | 8,00    | 206                | 3112   | HPP              | 1      | 55                  |
|           |        | 30        | 4.00    | 280                | 20.11  | 4R(72)           | 7      | SI, t 3.84          |
|           |        | 40        | 3,00    | 237                | 1983   | 10               | 2      | 55, 12, 15          |
|           |        | 45        | 3.00    | 237-267            | 1845   | 2R (46)          | 1      | 55, 12.84           |
| 90        | T33    | 0         | 4.00    | **                 | ••     | ••               | 0      | 26ANO               |
|           |        |           | 6.00    | 341-255            | 2144   | LCP              | 8      | BL (P) = 2162, 28(3 |
|           |        |           | 8,00    | 206                | 3167   | HPP              | 1      | 55                  |
|           |        |           | 10.00   | 197                | 31.50  | HPP              | 2      | 56                  |
|           |        | 30        | 8,00    | 204                | 3139   | HPP              | 1      | 55                  |
|           |        | 46        | 5,00    | 201-255            | 2093   | 5E = 72          | 14     | 55                  |
|           |        | 55        | 4,00    | 242-272            | 3003   | SE = 41          | 40     | SHES                |
|           |        | <b>80</b> | 3.07    | 264-316            | 2582   | 5 <b>E = 1</b> 2 | 70     | 3845                |
|           |        |           | 4,01    | 279-274            | 3113   | SF = 131         | 21     |                     |

Part 4. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Cast Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

ų.,

÷

57

#### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

|        | Shot     | Nom.  | P1      | ate                | Ballisti | ic Limit  | Number | Notes                     |
|--------|----------|-------|---------|--------------------|----------|-----------|--------|---------------------------|
| Cal,   | Model    | Obl., | Nom. t, | BHN,               | BL(A),   | Signifi-  | of     | (Abbreviations            |
| mm     | No.      | deg   | in.     | kg/mm <sup>2</sup> | ft/sec   | cance     | Rounds | explained on p 27)        |
| 90     | T33E7    | 0     | 4.00    | 232                | 1701     | 4R(80)    | 6      | SI, t 3.97                |
| (Not p | art of   |       | 5.00    | 235                | 1610PP,  | 1731CP    | 9      | SI, t 5.19, BL(P) = 1766  |
|        | ct AX23) |       | 6.00    | 248                | 2090     | 6R(131)   | 8      | SI, t 6.01                |
|        | -        | 20    | 6.00    | 248                | 2136     | LCP       | 7      | SI&S, t 5.99, BL(P) = 219 |
|        |          | 30    | 4.00    | 232                | 1866     | 4R (65)   | 8      | SI&B, t 3.97              |
|        |          | 45    | 5.00    | 235                | 2761     | 6R(115)   | 6      | SS, t 5.19                |
|        |          | 55    | 4.00    | 219                | 2671     | 6R(149)   | 7      | t 3. 99                   |
|        |          | 60    | 3.00    | 233                | 2746     | 2R(62)    | 8      | t 3.02                    |
| 90     | T54E1    | 0     | 7.60    | 247                | 2459     | 6R(117)   | 10     | SI48, t 7.55              |
|        |          | 30    | 5.00    | <b>238-</b> 258    | 2553     | SE = 15   | 20     | SB& S                     |
|        |          |       | ö. 00   | 254-260            | 2876     | SE = 31   | 20     | 55                        |
|        |          |       | 7.60    | 245-260            | 3289     | HPP       | 11     | SB&S, t 7.53              |
|        |          | 45    | 4.00    | 243-282            | 2487     | SE = 52   | 22     | 5 <b>54</b> .8            |
|        |          |       | 5.00    | 238-273            | 2732     | SE = 35   | 20     | SB                        |
|        |          |       | 6.00    | 246-267            | 3232     | SE = 82   | 20     | SB                        |
|        |          | 55    | 3.00    | 258-266            | 2410     | SE = 34   | 20     | 5 <b>8</b> 4, 5           |
|        |          |       |         | 326                | 2232     | SE = 24   | 10     |                           |
|        |          |       | 4.00    | 220                | 2850     | SE = 37   | 15     | 5 <b>84:5</b>             |
|        |          |       |         | 288                | 2618     | 6R(41)    | 11     |                           |
|        |          | 60    | 2,00    | 224                | 2263     | 4R(82)    | 7      | SB, t 2,08                |
|        |          |       | 3.00    | 230-300            | 2675     | SE = 39   | 30     | SBA S                     |
|        |          |       |         | (220               | 2990     | 51 = 34 ] |        |                           |
|        |          |       | 4.00    | 2 260              | 3084     | SE = 38   | 43     | SB& S                     |
|        |          |       |         | 300                | 2937     | SE = 28   |        |                           |
|        |          |       | 5.00    | 239                | 3200     | HPT       | 4      | <b>58</b> , t 5, 16       |
|        |          | 65    | 3.00    | 221-300            | 2871     | SF = 30   | 20     | 584.5                     |
|        |          |       | 4.00    | 238                | 3399     | HPP       | 3      | 55, t 4, 20               |
|        |          |       |         | 238                | 3144     | 28(1)     | 10     | \$5, 14.04, Jone CP       |
|        |          | 70    | 2.00    | 222                | 2328     | 48 (49)   | 6      | 58, t 1,98                |
|        |          |       | 3,00    | 223                | 3126     | 4R(31)    | 10     | 58, 13,02                 |
|        |          |       |         | 254                | 3109     | GR (80)   | 9      | SBA 5, 1 3,06             |

Part 4. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Cast Homogeneous Armor



3

~~ ~

~

1

### 58

### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

| Sh        | ot    | Nom.  | <b>P</b> 1 | A16                | Ballist | ic Limit         | Number | Notes                   |
|-----------|-------|-------|------------|--------------------|---------|------------------|--------|-------------------------|
| Cal,      | Model | Obl., | Nom. t,    | BHN,               | BL(A).  | Signifi-         | of     | (Abbreviations          |
| <u>mm</u> | No    | deg   | in.        | kg/mm <sup>2</sup> | ft/sec  | cance            | Rounds | explained on p 27)      |
| 120       | T116  | 30    | 6.00       | 248                | 2091    | 6R(95)           | 9      | E5, SB, t 6.01          |
| (Mods Ed  |       |       | 7.60       | 252                | 2779    | 4R(34)           | 8      | E4, SB, t7.62           |
| (         | /     | 45    | 4.00       | 275                | 2010    | 4R(55)           | 5      | E4 w/o WS, SS, t 4.1    |
|           |       |       | 5.00       | 280                | 2239    | 6R(148)          | 7      | E4 w/o WS, SS, t 5, 1   |
|           |       |       | 6.00       | 238-244            | 2923    | 6R(132)          | 10     | E4, SS, t 5, 99         |
|           |       |       |            | 249                | 3130    | 6R(89)           | 8      | E5, SS, t 6.27          |
|           |       |       | 7,60       | 252                | 3135    | HPP              | 3      | E4, SB, t7,62           |
|           |       | 55    | 5,00       | 233-274            | 2693    | SE = 40          | 64     | E4, SB&S                |
|           |       |       | 6.00       | 246                | 3336    | HPP              | 7      | E5, SS, t 6.26          |
|           |       | 60    | 2,00       | 243-244            | 1593    | LCP              | 9      | E5, SB, t 2,06          |
|           |       | ••    | 3.00       | 275                | 2336    | 6R(96)           | 8      | E5, SS, t 3, 13         |
|           |       |       | 0.00       | 325                | 2322    | 6R(94)           | 9      | E4 W/O WS, SS, t 3.10   |
|           |       |       |            | 249                | 2600    | 6R(103)          | 7      | E5, SS, t 4.18          |
|           |       |       | 4.00       | 280                | 2297    | 6R(123)          | 9      | E5, SB, t 3.90          |
|           |       |       | 5.00       | 239                | 2854    | 2R(32)           | 5      | E4, SS, t 4, 96         |
|           |       |       | 0.00       | 284                | 2993    | 6R(114)          | 7      | E4 w/o WS, SS, t 5, 2   |
|           |       | 65    | 4.00       | 246                | 3277    | HPF              | 5      | E5, SS, t 4.17          |
|           |       | 70    | 2.00       | 244-251            | 2008    | 2R(41)           | 3<br>7 | E5, SB, t 2.07          |
|           |       |       | 3.00       | 323                | 2506    | 2R(50)           | 7      | E4  w/o WS, SS, t 3.1   |
|           |       |       | 5.00       | 252-274            | 2886    | • •              | 15     | E5, SS, t 3. 12         |
|           |       |       |            | 246                | 3314    | 6R(91)           | 15     |                         |
|           |       |       | 4.00       | 285                | 3138    | HPP              |        | E5, SS, t 4.17          |
|           |       | 75    | 2,00       | 253-257            | 2632    | 4R(78)<br>4R(60) | 78     | E5, SS, t 4. 18         |
|           |       | 10    | 2.00       | 200-201            | 2003 &  | 4K(00)           | C      | E5, 5 <b>B</b> , t 1.99 |
| 155       | M112  | 0     | 5.00       | 192-230            | 1509    | 2R(18)           | 21     | SI, only one PP         |
|           |       |       | 8.00       | 206                | 2462    | LCP              | 4      | SLAS                    |
|           |       |       | 10.00      | 197                | 2682    | 122              | 3      | SB                      |
|           |       | 30    | 4.00       | 212-280            | Mix 138 | 2 to 1468        | 16     | SI, only 2 PP, 234ARC   |
|           |       |       | 5,00       | 259                | 1722    | 4R(97)           | 7      | J, t 4.90               |
|           |       |       | 6.00       | 183-255            | 1771    | SE = 129         | 48     | SI, mostly acc, tests   |
|           |       | 45    | 4.00       | 236-261            | 1872    | 28(76)           | 5      | SI&B, t 3, 94           |
|           |       |       | 6.00       | 185-226            | 2590    | 6R(141)          | 8      | SIAS, t 6.04            |
| 6-in Mk ) | XVI   | 15    | 6.00       | 185-195            | 1548    | 6R(162)          |        | t 5.81, 38ARO           |

Part 4. Armor Piercing Projectiles Versus Cast Homogeneous Armor



• •

• • · · •

٠

~

-+-

### 59

#### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

|      | Shot  | Nom.  | P      | late         | Ballis       | tic Limit      | Number   | Notes                       |
|------|-------|-------|--------|--------------|--------------|----------------|----------|-----------------------------|
| Cal, | Model | Obl., | Nom t, | BHN,         | BL(A),       | Signifi-       | of       | (Abbreviations              |
| mm   | No.   | deg   | in.    | $kg/mm^2$    | ft/sec       | cance          | Rounds   | explained on p 27)          |
|      |       |       |        |              |              |                |          |                             |
|      |       |       |        | 260          | 1045         | SE = 14        |          |                             |
| 37   | M51   | 0     | 1.00   | 310          | 995          | SE = 7 >       | 53       | SI                          |
|      |       |       |        | <b>36</b> 0  | 948          | SE = 11        |          |                             |
|      |       |       | 1.50   | 248-311      | 1584         | SE = 56        | 111      | SI                          |
|      |       |       | 2.00   | 242-302      | 1817         | SE = 32        | 138      | SI                          |
|      |       |       | 2.25   | 252-283      | 2032         | SE = 19        | 70       | SI                          |
|      |       |       | 3.00   | 269          | 2364         | 2R(21)         | 5.       | SI, t 2.87                  |
|      |       | 20    | 1.00   | 262-332      | 1167         | 4R(62)         | 17       | SI, t 1,08                  |
|      |       |       |        | 364          | 1042         | 2R(33)         | 3        | t 1.01                      |
|      |       |       |        | 260          | 1368         | SE = 55        |          |                             |
|      |       | 30    | 1.00   | <b>∢</b> 310 | <b>136</b> 9 | SE = 28 >      | 29       | SI                          |
|      |       |       |        | 360          | 1205         | SE ≈ 56∫       |          |                             |
|      |       |       |        | (200         | 2273         | SE = 57        |          |                             |
|      |       | 35    | 2.00   | 250          | 2436         | SE = 12        | 297      | SILLS                       |
|      |       |       |        | 300          | 2624         | SE = 31        |          |                             |
|      |       | 40    | 1.00   | 262          | 1903         | LCP            | 1        |                             |
|      |       |       |        | (260         | 1875         | SE = 41)       | -        |                             |
|      |       | 45    | 1.00   | 2 310        | 1968         | SE = 24        | 48       | SIA:B                       |
|      |       |       | -      | 360          | 1868         | SE = 44        |          |                             |
|      |       | 55    | 1.00   | 262-364      | 2326         | SE = 31        | 37       | SILLB                       |
| 57   | M86   | 0     | 3.00   | 263-272      | 1849         | 6R(108)        | 13       | 51 • O ủa                   |
| •,   | MOG   | v     | 4.00   | 323          | 2278         | 6R(57)         |          | 51, t 2, 99<br>518.5 - A 36 |
|      |       | 30    | 1.50   | 235-330      | 1224         | SE = 50        | 11<br>17 | SI&S, t 4, 16               |
|      |       | 30    | 4.00   | 323          | 2)21         |                |          | FF . A 18                   |
|      |       |       | 4.00   | (235-26)     | 1501         |                | 4        | \$\$, t 4.16                |
|      |       | 35    | 1.50   | 302          | 1403         | 2R(6)          | 6        | t 1,56                      |
|      |       | 99    | 1      | 330          |              |                | 3        | t 1,55                      |
|      |       |       | 2,00   |              | 1163         | LCP            | 3        | t 1.41                      |
|      |       |       |        | 251          | 1783         | 6R(79)         | 6        | 5168, t 2,06                |
|      |       |       | 2,50   | 254<br>Cono  | 2073         | 6R(112)        | 12       | <b>\$1, 1 2, 5</b> 7        |
|      |       |       |        | ∫ 220        | 235.         | SE = 41        |          |                             |
|      |       |       | 3.00   | 270          | 2491         | SE = 26 >      | 76       | 5165                        |
|      |       |       |        | 320          | 2563         | SE = 43        |          |                             |
|      |       |       |        | 230          | 1531         | SE = 70        |          |                             |
|      |       | 45    | 1, 50  | 200          | 1727         | SE = 35 }      | 47       |                             |
|      |       |       |        | 330          | 1195         | SE = 45        |          |                             |
|      |       | • -   | 3.00   | 272          | 9696         | 31(90)         |          | <b>31</b> , <b>1 3</b> , 10 |
|      |       | 50    | 2,00   | 264-303      | 2880         | 5E = 30        | 30       | 5448                        |
|      |       | 86    | 1, 50  | 235-302      | 2078         | LCP            | 11       | t 1,9E                      |
|      |       |       |        | 330          | 1880         | 38 (42)        | 4        |                             |
|      |       |       | 2, 99  | 364-343      | 2736         | <b>ë</b> k(70) | 19       | 5868, 1 2. 24               |
|      |       |       | 2.00   | 256-301      | 2712         | 197            |          | 5168, t 1, 99               |

Part 5. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Cast Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

r.,-

A. 🖝 apata ana agus

. .....

.....

es itonvit**it** :

-

4

T

Ł

111

### 60

### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

|                | Shot        | Nom.  | P            | late               | Ballist    | ic Limit           | Number | Notes              |  |
|----------------|-------------|-------|--------------|--------------------|------------|--------------------|--------|--------------------|--|
| Cal,           | Model       | Obl., | Nom. t,      | BHN,               | BL(A),     | Signifi-           | of     | (Abbreviations     |  |
| mm             | No          | deg   | in.          | kg/mm <sup>2</sup> | ft/sec     | cance              | Rounds | explained on p 27) |  |
| 75             | 161         | 0     | 2 00         | 269                | 1418       | 00 (27)            |        | ST + 0 90          |  |
| 10             | <b>M6</b> 1 | 0     | 3,00<br>4,00 | 268<br>268         | 1940       | 2R (37)<br>2R (48) | 7<br>5 | SI, t 2.82         |  |
|                |             | 25    |              | 208<br>262         | 972        | 2R(48)             | 1      | SI • 1 19          |  |
|                |             | 25    | 1,25<br>1,50 | 284                | 962<br>962 | HPP<br>HPP         | 2      | SI, t 1.19         |  |
|                |             | 45    | 1,00         | 340                | 1991       | 4R(127)            | 6      | SI<br>SS, t 1.02   |  |
|                |             | 40    | 1,00         | 340                | 1991       | <b>4</b> K(121)    | Ŭ      | 55, 11.02          |  |
| 76             | M62         | 0     | 2.00         | 241-291            | 1092       | 6R(87)             | 16     | t 2,08             |  |
|                |             |       |              | 314                | 912        | LCP                | 4      | t 2,08             |  |
|                |             |       | 4.00         | 280                | 2014       | 2R(44)             | 3      | t 3, 97            |  |
|                |             | 20    | 3.75         | 217                | 1871PP,    | 2033CP             | 8      | SI                 |  |
|                |             |       | 4.00         | 188-207            | Mix 2047   | to 2628            | 20     | SI                 |  |
|                |             | 30    | 2.00         | 243-307            | 1243       | 6R(84)             | 17     |                    |  |
|                |             |       | 3.00         | 269                | 1720       | 4R(100)            | 5      | SI, t 2.82         |  |
|                |             |       | 4.00         | <b>∫</b> 204-245   | 2286       | 4R(82)             | 10     | SI, t 3.94         |  |
|                |             |       |              | 273-321            | 2599       | 2R(8)              | 7      | SL&s, t 3, 94      |  |
|                |             |       |              | 220                | 2379       | SE = 24            |        |                    |  |
|                |             | 35    | 4.00         | 250                | 2339       | SE = 35            | 46     | SI&S               |  |
|                |             |       |              | 280                | 2734       | SE = 25            |        |                    |  |
|                |             |       |              | 210                | 1790       | SE = 57            |        |                    |  |
|                |             | 45    | 2.00         | 260                | 1672       | SE = 44            | 132    | SI                 |  |
|                |             |       |              | 310                | 1590       | SE = 59            |        |                    |  |
|                |             |       | 2, 25        | 259-311            | 1896       | 6R(53)             | 13     | t 2 <b>. 30</b>    |  |
|                |             |       | 2, 50        | 259-266            | 2291       | SE = 24            | 28     |                    |  |
|                |             |       |              | 240-243            | 2129       | 6R(126)            | 12     | t 2.10 Probit      |  |
|                |             | 55    | 2.00         | 282-285            | 2150       | 4R(92)             | 6      | t 1.94 analysis    |  |
|                |             |       |              | 307                | 2211       | <b>6R</b> (39)     | 11     | t 2.05 diverged    |  |
| <del>9</del> 0 | <b>M8</b> 2 | 0     | 3.00         | 237-269            | 2043PP,    | 2212CP             | 6      | t 2, 95            |  |
|                |             |       | 4.00         | 217-280            | 1687       | SE = 13            | 46     | SI                 |  |
|                |             |       | 5,00         | 218                | 2156       | LCP                | 4      | SI, t 5, 12        |  |
|                |             |       | 6,00         | 195-232            | 2341       | <b>6</b> R(145)    | 28     | SI                 |  |
|                |             |       | 8.00         | 206                | 3196       | 199                | 2      | 58                 |  |
|                |             |       | 10.00        | 197                | 3167       | HPP                | 2      | SI                 |  |
|                |             | 20    | 8,00         | 206                | 3170       | LCP                | 2      | S <b>LÄ.B</b>      |  |
|                |             | 30    | 3, 00        | 235-303            | 1609       | SE = 22            | 47     |                    |  |
|                |             |       |              | (230               | 2115       | SE - 13)           |        | SI for BHIN # 280  |  |
|                |             |       | 4.00         | 260                | 2087       | SE = 36 >          | 110    | SLAS for BHN 2 321 |  |
|                |             |       |              | 390                | 2961       | SE = 98            |        | Come is bill & AFY |  |
|                |             |       | 6,00         | 236-238            | 2728       | HPP                | 3      |                    |  |

Part 5. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versu Cast Homogeneous Armor

61

### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

|      | Shot          | Nom. | P       | ate                | Bellis  | ic Limit        | Number     | Notes                        |
|------|---------------|------|---------|--------------------|---------|-----------------|------------|------------------------------|
| Cal, | Model         | ОЫ., | Nom. t, | BHN,               | BL(A),  | Signifi-        | of         | (Abbreviations               |
| 1000 | No.           | deg  | in.     | kg/mm <sup>2</sup> | ft/sec  | cance           | Rounds     | explained on p 27)           |
|      |               |      |         |                    |         |                 |            |                              |
| 90   | <b>M8</b> 2   | 35   | 2,00    | 253                | 2346    | 2R(49)          | 2          | SI, t 2.03                   |
|      |               | 40   | 4.00    | 229-301            | 2591    | 2R(4)           | 5          | SI, t 3.97                   |
|      |               |      |         | 190                | 2109    | SE = 101        |            |                              |
|      |               | 45   | 3.00    | <b>{ 26</b> 0      | 2263    | SE = 20 🗲       | 212        | SI&B                         |
|      |               |      |         | 330                | 2139    | SE = 80         |            |                              |
|      |               |      | 3.25    | 248                | 2189    | 2R(50)          | 3          | S <b>IA S</b>                |
|      |               |      | 4.00    | 199-280            | Mix 258 | 3 to 3220       | 82         | slæs <sup>(a)</sup>          |
|      |               | 55   | 3.00    | 264                | 2593    | HPP             | 1          | t 3.02                       |
|      |               |      |         | (230               | 2286    | SE = 17         |            |                              |
| 90   | T39           | 30   | 5,00    | 250                | 2216    | SE = 14         | 61         | SI                           |
|      |               | -    |         | 270                | 2328    | SE = 15         |            |                              |
|      |               | 55   | 4.00    | 245                | 3129    | H <b>P</b> P    | 4          | SB, t4.04                    |
|      |               | 60   | 3.00    | 253                | 2744    | 6R(104)         | 10         | SB, t 3.02                   |
|      |               | ••   | 0.00    |                    |         | 00(104)         | ĨV         | 3 <b>9</b> , ( <b>3</b> , 72 |
| 90   | T50E1         | 0    | 7.60    | 247-269            | 2652    | SE = 24         | 24         | SI                           |
|      |               | 30   | 5.00    | 238-258            | 2280    | SE = 13         | 33         | SI                           |
|      |               |      | 6.00    | 254-260            | 2623    | SE = 63         | 20         | SI                           |
|      |               |      | 7.60    | 245-260            | 2943    | SE = 21         | 01         | SI                           |
|      |               | 45   | 4.00    | 238                | 2479    | 6R(140)         | 10         | SIAB, t 3.73                 |
|      |               | •-   |         | 281                | 2652    | 6R(171)         | 10         | SB, t 0.94                   |
|      |               |      | 5.00    | 238-241            | 2928    | SE = 19         | 31         | SIAR                         |
|      |               |      | 6.00    | 254-267            | 3259    | HPP             | 13         | 514-S. / 5, 32               |
|      |               | 55   | 3.00    | 249-280            | 2863    | SE = 89         | 21         | 34600x + 85 4 6<br>38        |
|      |               |      | 4.00    | 245                | 3136    |                 |            |                              |
|      |               |      | 4.00    | 288                | 2727    | 4R(147)         | 6          | S8, t 4.04                   |
|      |               | 60   | 2.00    |                    |         | 28(2)           | 7          | 55, t 3.95                   |
|      |               | UU   |         | 225<br>229-208     | 2158    | 4R(52)          | 11         | SI, t 2.01                   |
|      |               |      | 3.00    | 279-303            | 2749    | SE = 21         | 21         | SF:                          |
|      |               |      | 4.00    | 220-304            | 3213CP, |                 |            |                              |
|      |               | 65   | 3.00    | 262                | 3152    | 6R (60)         | 1          | -mas, 13.07                  |
|      |               | 70   | 2.00    | 238                |         | to 23 <b>88</b> | 11         | us. t 2,07                   |
|      |               |      | 3.00    | 249                | 3350    | HPP             | ٩          | ÷                            |
| 120  | T14 <b>53</b> | 30   | 7.60    | 246-289            | 2541    | <b>SE = 11</b>  | 1~         | 5%                           |
|      |               | 45   | 6.00    | 346-367            | 2045    | SE = 55         | <b>*</b> • | St                           |
|      |               |      | 7.60    | 200                | 3103    | 1 <b>91</b>     |            | <b>38,</b> 17 <b>56</b>      |
|      |               | 00   | 3,00    | 236-255            | 2370    | <b>6</b> R(123) | 12         | 386.5                        |
|      |               |      | 4,00    | 246-280            | 2783    | ØR(132)         | ×2         | M. 13.16                     |
|      |               |      | 5,00    | 244-280            | 3046    | <b>FR(74)</b>   | 9          | 3048, t 8,11                 |
|      |               | 70   | 3,00    | <b>25</b> 1        | 3118    | 6R (30)         | 7          | 2 12 13,13                   |
|      |               |      | 4.00    | 236                | 3318    | HPP             |            | is t <b>4,33</b>             |

Part 5. Armor Piercing Capped Projectiles Versus Cast Homogeneous Armor

CONFIDENTIAL

• •

1 ...

-

× + × Anno

62

### TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF BALLISTIC LIMITS

|              | Shot         | Nom.       | Pl             | ate                        | Ballisti         | c Limit           | Number       | Notes                                |
|--------------|--------------|------------|----------------|----------------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------|--------------------------------------|
| Cal,         | Model<br>No. | Obl<br>deg | Nom. t.<br>in. | BHN,<br>kg/mm <sup>2</sup> | BL(A),<br>ft/sec | Signifi-<br>cance | of<br>Rounds | (Abbreviations<br>explained on p 27) |
| mim          |              | ueg        | <b>\$</b> \$\$ | KE/ IIIII                  |                  |                   |              | explained on p 21                    |
| 90           | M304         | 0          | 7 <b>.6</b> 0  | 245-269                    | 2414             | SE = 13           | 32           | SI                                   |
|              |              | 30         | 5.00           | 236-273                    | 2220             | SE = 15           | 22           | SB                                   |
|              |              |            | 6.00           | 254-260                    | 2482             | SE = 24           | 21           | SB                                   |
|              |              |            | 7.60           | 245                        | 2782             | 6R(95)            | 10           | SI                                   |
|              |              | 45         | 4.00           | 243                        | 2728             | 6R(138)           | 10           | SS, t 3.94                           |
|              |              |            |                | 282                        | 2862             | 2R(3)             | 10           | SS, t 3.85                           |
|              |              |            | 5.00           | 236-273                    | 3128             | SE = 57           | 22           | SB at 236, SS at 273                 |
|              |              |            | 6.00           | 246-267                    | 3673             | SE = 41           | 21           | SS                                   |
|              |              |            | 7.60           | 247                        | 3744             | HPP               | 4            | SB                                   |
|              |              | 55         | 3.00           | 243-280                    | 2759             | SE = 23           | 21           | SB at 243, SS at 280                 |
|              |              |            | 4.00           | 231-280                    | 3374             | SE = 13           | 23           | SB                                   |
|              |              | 60         | 3.00           | 243-272                    | 2991             | SE = 11           | 20           | SB at 243, SS at 272                 |
|              |              |            | 4.00           | 258-266                    | 3795             | HPP               | 14           | SB&S, t 4.05                         |
|              |              |            |                | 301                        | 3686             | 6R(101)           | 10           | SS, t 3,93                           |
|              |              |            | 5.00           | 239                        | 3750             | HPP               | 4            | SB, t 5, 16                          |
|              |              | 70         | 3.00           | 245-280                    | 3853             | HPP               | 8            | SB at 245 w/t 3.08                   |
|              |              | 10         | 0.00           | 240 - 200                  |                  | 4 <b>8</b> 6 F    | 5            | SS at 280 w/t 3.11                   |
| 90           | T30E15       | 20         | 10.00          | 197                        | 2693PP,          | 3065CP            | 3            | SS                                   |
| 90           | T44          | 0          | 8.00           | 2 <b>23</b>                | 2513             | 4R (36)           | 10           | SI, t 8.02                           |
|              |              | 25         | 8.00           | 223                        | 2816             | 6R(101)           | 11           | SI&S, t 8,02                         |
|              |              | 35         | 8.00           | 223                        | 3248             | 6R(39)            | 10           | SIAS, t 8.02                         |
|              |              | 40         | 8.00           | 223                        | 3445             | 6R(72)            | 10           | SI&B, t 8.02                         |
|              |              | 45         | 8.00           | 223                        | 3660             | 2R(25)            | 6            | SMAS, 1 8,02                         |
|              |              | 50         | 8.00           | 223                        | 3672             | HPP               | 3            | SS, t 8.02                           |
| 1 <b>5</b> ů | <b>T3</b> 5  | 30         | 4. 00          | 207                        | 1467             | HPP               | 1            |                                      |

# CONFIDENTIAL

.

-

• #~~

APPENDIX

BIBLIOGRAPHY

CONFIDENTIAL

• • •

### **A-1**

#### APPENDIX

### BIBLIOGRAPHY

Following is a list of the principal references that were edited to get the penetration data that were analyzed.

| Projects TB4-150M  | and TB4-10  |          | (Approximately  | 4,600 rounds) |
|--------------------|-------------|----------|-----------------|---------------|
| Ar 16981           | Ar 17094    | Ar 17186 | Ar 18065        | Ar 20802      |
| 16983              | 17131       | 17390    | 18065sup        | 20949         |
| 16984              | 17146       | 17845    | 18084           | 21080         |
| 16985              | 17154       | 18060    | 18084sup        | 21203         |
| 16988              | 17158       | 18223    | 19675           | 21344         |
| 1699 <b>4</b>      | 17163       | 18494    | 19843           |               |
| 17050              | 17221       | 19106    | 20701           |               |
| Project TT1-5      |             |          | (Approximately  | 1,400 rounds) |
| Ar 17784           | Ar 17826    | Ar 18490 | Ar 18752        | Ar 19447      |
| 17791              | 17838       | 18513    | 19076           | 19476         |
| 17792              | 17910       | 18513sup | 19182           | 20526         |
| 17794              | 18073       | 18553    | 19183           |               |
| 17796              | 18073sup    | 18553sup | 19187           |               |
| 17798              | 18107       | 18658    | 19276           |               |
| 17804              | 18489       | 18703    | 19366           |               |
| Project AX23       |             |          | (Approximately  | 500 rounds)   |
| Ar 19945k          | Ar 20318    | Ar 20730 | <b>Ar</b> 20895 |               |
| Project TB3-1224   |             |          | (Approximately  | 200 rounds)   |
| Ar 18504           | Ar 21421    |          |                 |               |
| O. P. 2864, Effect | of Hardness |          | (Approximately  | 3,400 rounds) |
| AD 558             | AD 838      | AD 1043  | A-12581         | A-12614       |
| AD 586             | AD 992      | AD 1064  | 12582           | Ar 16231      |
| AD 679             | AD 1007     | AD 1080  | 12580           |               |
| AD 686             | AD 1041     |          | 12585           |               |
| AD 834             | AD 1042     |          | 12606           |               |

I

I

I

Ŧ

F

F

- . . . . . .

- -

.



•

-

### **A-2**

| Miscellaneous Tes   | st Programs on R | L. H. Armor   | (Approximat                  | tely 1,400 rounds) |  |
|---------------------|------------------|---------------|------------------------------|--------------------|--|
| AD 210              | AD 542           | AD 689        | AD 844                       | AD 1084            |  |
| AD 369              | AD 574           | AD 830        | AD 1014                      |                    |  |
| AD 509              | AD 652           | AD 839        | AD 1033                      | Ar 13801           |  |
| Miscellaneous Tes   | st Programs on C | C. H. Armor   | (Approximat                  | tely 2,400 rounds) |  |
| AD 517              | AD 590           | AD 678        | AD 836                       | AD 1074            |  |
| AD 560              | AD 630           | AD 685        | <b>AD</b> 990                | AD 1076            |  |
| AD 571              | AD 658           | AD 694        | AD 999                       | Ar 15244           |  |
| AD 587              | <b>AD</b> 663    | <b>AD</b> 697 | AD 1012                      | Ar 15256           |  |
| Acceptance Tests    | of Armor Plate   | (Approximat   | tely 2,400 rounds)           |                    |  |
| Records From        | These Library B  | ooks          | BC114I                       |                    |  |
| 127C                | 127 <b>G</b>     | 127M2         | 127Q                         | BC163B             |  |
| 127C2               | 127G1            | 127M3         | 12 <b>7</b> 5                | BC163C             |  |
| 127D                | 127K10-5         | 127M4         | BC114A                       | BC174              |  |
| 127D1               | 127L             | 127M7         | BC114C                       | BG4                |  |
| 127D2               | 127 <b>M1</b>    | 127M10-1      | BC114E                       | C74A               |  |
| Shot Design Project | cts              |               | (Approximately 2,700 rounds) |                    |  |
| O.P.5870            | Project TAl      | - 1251        | Some single                  | reports:           |  |
| 575 <b>7</b>        | TAL              | -1254         | ADP194                       | P35543             |  |
| 575 <b>8</b>        | TAL              | -1301         | ADP197                       | P39979             |  |
| 6132                | TAL              | -1302         | P25184                       | P41354             |  |
| 5591                | TAL              | -1460         | <b>P34137</b> .              | P56080             |  |
|                     | TAL              | -1503         | P34144                       |                    |  |
| Acceptance Tests    | of Shot          |               | (Approximat                  | tely 1,200 rounds) |  |
| Records From        | These Library B  | ooks          |                              |                    |  |
| A128                | BG21             | BG28          | DA88                         | DA128              |  |
| BC163D              | BG22             | DA21          | <b>DA</b> 99                 | EB41               |  |
| BG16                | BG26             | DA74          | <b>DA104</b>                 | -                  |  |
| Other Firing R      | ecords           |               |                              |                    |  |

P53966 to P60803, 21 records on the HVAPDS, 76 mm, M331 P52520 to P54821, 7 records on the AP, 90 mm, T33

• • • •

CONFIDENTIAL

- -

#### A-3 and A-4

Following is a list of the principal references that were edited, but that were not used in the analysis.

| Acceptance Tests | of Armor Plate |                | (Approximately 800 rounds) |                     |  |
|------------------|----------------|----------------|----------------------------|---------------------|--|
| Records From     | These Library  | Books          |                            | 127M7               |  |
| 127C             | 127D1          | 12 <b>7G</b> 1 | 127M4                      | 1270                |  |
| 127C2            | 127:52         | 127M1          | 127 <b>M</b> 5             | 1275                |  |
| 127D             | 127 <b>G</b>   | 127M2          | 127M6                      | A128A               |  |
| Acceptance Tests | of Shot        |                | (Approxima                 | tely 11,400 rounds) |  |
| Records From     | These Library  | Books          |                            |                     |  |

| A103  | AN2    | BC163  | C74.4 | <b>DA74</b>  |
|-------|--------|--------|-------|--------------|
| A128  | AN4    | BC163A | C74B  | DA 88        |
| A128A | AN7    | BC163B | C95   | <b>D</b> A99 |
| A136  | AN12   | BC163C | C96   | <b>DA128</b> |
| AN    | BC114B | BC163D | DA13  |              |
| AN1   | BC114E | BC174  | DA21  |              |
|       |        |        |       |              |

#### Other Firing Records

P52366 to P55575, 15 records on the AP, 90mm, T33

Following is a list of references which were not edited, but apparently contained material that could have been used.

### Shot Design Projects

(Approximately 700 rounds)

Project TA1-1475, Report 1 and 6 other firing records TA1-1602, Reports 1, 2, 8 and 5 other firing records TA1-5002, Report 3 and F. R. P-60401 TA1-1302, Report 13

### Acceptance Tests of Shot

(Approximately 800 rounds)

. · .

### **Records From These Library Books**

BC-114-B, C, D, and E, 30 records on the AP, 75mm, M72 and APC, 75mm, M61, BC163 and BC163A, 27 records on the AP, 75mm, M72 and APC, 75mm, M61

### Other Firing Records

P-48161 to P-62446, 45 records on the AP, 120mm, T116

### DISTRIBUTION LIST

| No. of Copies | Organization                                                                                | No. of<br>Copies | Organization                                                                                                        |
|---------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 2             | Chief of Ordnance<br>Department of the Army<br>Washington 25, D.C.<br>ATTN: ORDTB - Bai Sec | 2                | Chief of Research and Development<br>Department of the Army<br>Washington 25, D.C.<br>ATTN: Dir/Developments Combat |
|               | ORDTW                                                                                       |                  | Materiel Division                                                                                                   |
| 10            | British Joint Services Mission<br>1800 K Street, N. W.                                      | 2                | Comm <b>anding General</b><br>Rocket and Guided Missile Agency                                                      |
|               | Washington 6, D.C.                                                                          |                  | Redstone Arsenal                                                                                                    |
|               | ATTN: Mr. John Izzard<br>Reports Officer                                                    |                  | Huntsville, Alabama                                                                                                 |
|               |                                                                                             | 1                | Commanding General                                                                                                  |
| 4             | Canadian Army Staff<br>2450 Massachusetts Avenue                                            |                  | Picatinny Arsenal                                                                                                   |
|               | Washington 8, D.C.                                                                          |                  | Dover, New Jersey<br>ATTN: Samuel Feltman Ammo Labs.                                                                |
| 2             | Commandant, Marine Corps                                                                    | 1                | Commanding General                                                                                                  |
|               | Hq, U. S. Marine Corps                                                                      |                  | Continental Army Command                                                                                            |
|               | Washington 25, D.C.                                                                         |                  | Fort Monroe, Virginia                                                                                               |
| 2             | Chief of Naval Operations                                                                   |                  | ATTN: Au't Chief of Staff<br>for Development and Test                                                               |
| L             | Department of the Navy                                                                      |                  | for Development and Test                                                                                            |
|               | Washington 25, D.C.                                                                         | 1                | Commandant                                                                                                          |
|               | ATTN: New Development And                                                                   |                  | Command and General Staff College                                                                                   |
|               | Operational Eval Div.                                                                       |                  | Fort Leavenworth, Kansas                                                                                            |
| 2             | Commandant                                                                                  | 2                | President                                                                                                           |
|               | U. S. Marine Corps School                                                                   |                  | U. S. Army Armor Board                                                                                              |
|               | Quantico, Virginia                                                                          |                  | Fort Knox, Kentucky                                                                                                 |
|               | ATTN: Dir, Matine Corps<br>Development Center                                               | 2                | President                                                                                                           |
|               | Development Center                                                                          | 2                | U. S. Army Infantry Board                                                                                           |
| ٽ             | Director                                                                                    |                  | Fort Benning, Georgia                                                                                               |
|               | Armed Services Tech Info Agency                                                             |                  |                                                                                                                     |
|               | Documents Service Center                                                                    | 1                | Commandant                                                                                                          |
|               | Enott Building                                                                              |                  | The Armored School                                                                                                  |
|               | Dayton 2, Ohio                                                                              |                  | Fort Knox, Kentucky                                                                                                 |
|               | ATTN: DSC-SD                                                                                |                  | ATTN: Weapons Dept, Combat<br>Development Group                                                                     |
| ĩ             | Director, Weapon Systems                                                                    | -                |                                                                                                                     |
|               | Evaluation Group                                                                            | 2                | Commandant                                                                                                          |
|               | Office, Secretary of Defense<br>Washington 25, D.C.                                         |                  | The Infantry School<br>Fort Benning, Georgia                                                                        |
|               | weamigton 20, D.C.                                                                          |                  | For Deming, Georgia                                                                                                 |
|               |                                                                                             |                  |                                                                                                                     |

----

1

10 F2

-

<u>\_\_\_</u>

## CONFIDENTIAL

\*

• .

•

DISTRIBUTION LIST (Continued)

No. of Copies

Congenization

- 2 Commanding Officer Detroit Arsenal Centerline, Michigan
- 1 Commanding Officer Watertown Arsenal Watertown, Massachusetts ATTN: OMRO
- 2 Commanding General Frankford Arsenal Philadelphia, Pennsylvania ATTN: Fire Control Director
- 1 Commandant Army War College Carlisle Barracks, Pennsylvania
- 1 Commanding General Ordnance Weapons Command Rock Island, Illinois ATTN: ORDOW-GEN Mr. S. O. Mulholian
- 1 Commanding Officer Watervliet Arsenal Watervliet, New York ATTN: R&D Division Mr. Frank John
- The Johns Hopkins University
  Operations Research Office
  U. S. Army
  7100 Connecticut Avenue
  Chevy Chase, Maryland
  Washington 25, D.C.
- 1 Commanding Officer Diamond Ordnance Fuze Laboratories Washington 25, D.C. ATTN: ORDTL 06.33
- 5 Director Ballistic Research Laboratories Aberdeen Proving Ground Maryland